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I am pleased to report that Stamford Land 
Corporation’s businesses have improved, with 
Group revenue increasing 4.5% over the last 
fi nancial year (“FY”) to S$278.7 million. Our stable 
of eight hotels enjoyed higher revenue per available 
room (“revpar”) while our two hotels in Adelaide are 
in recovery mode. We also sold more apartments 
and Dynons Plaza’s rental income increased 
compared to last year. 

Australia’s economic growth resulted in strong 
demand from local corporates and bolstered the 
Group’s overall hotel occupancy rate to 85.6%, 
refl ecting a 3.3% increase. Overall, our eight hotels 
achieved a healthy growth of 4.3% in revpar. 
Similarly, with improved business sentiments 
in New Zealand, our Auckland hotel enjoyed 
marked improvements.

Under our Property Development Segment, revenue 
more than doubled to S$47.9 million. Operating 
profi t, however, fell 15.4% to S$575,000. Higher 
property sales revenue was off set by advertising 
and marketing costs incurred and expensed out 
for Macquarie Park Village, whose sales proceeds 
will be recognised in 2017 when the project 
is completed. 

We sold 36 apartments at The Stamford 
Residences Auckland totalling NZ$28.0 million, 
compared with nine units sold in the last FY. 

Another A$14 million was earned through the sale 
of four apartments and one commercial unit at The 
Stamford Residences and The Reynell Terraces, 
leaving only two penthouses and two terraces left.

Our Property Investment Segment’s profi t fell 3.7% 
to S$12.1 million and revenue dropped 3.8% to 
S$13.4 million, due mainly to a weaker Australian 
dollar. On the other hand, Dynons Plaza in Perth 
reported a 5% increase in rental income compared 
to the last FY.

The Group is in a sound fi nancial position with 
cash and cash equivalents amounting to S$84.7 
million. This will enable us to invest where suitable 
opportunities arise.

The Board recommends a tax-exempt fi nal 
dividend of 2.0 cents per ordinary share and 
special dividend of 1.0 cent per ordinary share. 
Total payout will amount to about S$25.9 million.

Stamford: A brand of distinction

It has been a rewarding 20 years since our Stamford 
hospitality brand was established. Our homegrown 
luxury brand is now well known in Australasia and 
has developed a reputation for superiority in every 
way – prime location, quality accommodation 
and top notch service. We compete with global 
hospitality giants in the gateway cities of Australasia, 
often outrivalling them in terms of profi tability and 
clinching prestigious awards.
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Over the years, our award-winning hotel portfolio 
has been consistently recognised for excellence. 
To name a few accolades, Sir Stamford at Circular 
Quay, Stamford Plaza Melbourne, Stamford 
Plaza Brisbane and Stamford Plaza Auckland 
received TripAdvisor’s Certifi cate of Excellence for 
four consecutive years. Stamford Plaza Sydney 
Airport is ranked among the Best Airport Hotels 
in Australia/Pacifi c by the prestigious Skytrax 
World Airport Awards. Stamford Plaza Melbourne 
was named Apartment/Suite Accommodation of 
the Year at the 2014 Australian Hotel Association 
State Awards.

Still the challenges of a tough operating 
environment, characterised by higher operating 
expenses such as labour cost, are real. As owner-
operator, we have been vigilant in controlling costs 

where possible, such as outsourcing services 
and improving effi  ciency. We do not compromise 
service quality, bearing the comfort of our 
discerning patrons in mind.

We continue to explore opportunities to generate 
higher revenue in diff erent ways. These include 
major facelift works, increasing the number of 
guestrooms, expanding other income-generating 
space like conferencing, as well as refreshing our 
F&B outlets with exciting new concepts. 

Following the completion of Stamford Plaza 
Adelaide’s room refurbishment, we will be 
upgrading 220 guest rooms in Stamford Grand 
Adelaide, 19 suites in Stamford Plaza Brisbane 
and 284 rooms in Stamford Plaza Auckland. 
Plans are also underway for a major revamp of 
Stamford Plaza Sydney Airport’s guestrooms 
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and restaurants. Stamford Plaza Melbourne will 
have 24 more suites and Harry’s Restaurant will 
be transformed into Argentinean eatery La Boca, 
which will off er authentic delectable chargrilled 
cuisine. This follows the success of Stamford Plaza 
Adelaide’s La Boca, which has been very popular 
since its debut in March 2014.

Exciting property prospects 

We aim to maximise our asset values through the 
best use of land. Redevelopment and change of 
use are constantly evaluated to ensure highest 
end value. 

We are proud that Macquarie Park Village, to be 
built on the site of Stamford Grand North Ryde, 
has attracted resounding response from eager 
homebuyers and investors. I am pleased to 
report that Macquarie Park Village, comprising 
648 units across seven towers, is already 96% 
or 622 units pre-sold, amounting to total gross 
sales of A$427million as at 31 May 2014. It is 
the combination of Stamford’s luxury brand 
image, prime location and good track record 
that makes the Group’s residential product 
highly sought after by discerning homebuyers. 
Construction is slated to begin in the third quarter 
of this calendar year. 

Given the robust Sydney residential property 
market, we have gone ahead to apply for approvals 
for the redevelopment of our recently acquired 
freehold site, Sir Stamford at Circular Quay, 
on the historic Macquarie Street. Although the hotel 

is trading very well, the 1,611 square-metre site 
holds very promising prospects when redeveloped 
due to its exclusive location. Off ering a coveted 
residential address in the prestigious heart of 
Sydney’s CBD, it is within walking distance to the 
world-renowned Opera House, Sydney Harbour 
and Royal Botanical Gardens.

The proposed development involves conserving 
the heritage Health Department Building for 
adaptive reuse and constructing a 19-storey 
building comprising 104 residential apartments 
with a total saleable area of about 11,000 square 
metres. There will also be 1,354 square metres of 
retail and commercial space. 

We have yet another exciting freehold development 
coming up in the sought-after residential suburb 
of Dulwich Hill, about 8 km from Sydney’s CBD. 
Our A$23 million acquisition of 6-22 Grove Street 
and 60-64 Constitution Road was completed 
in February. The proposed plan to build 
247 apartments on the 10,000 square-metre site 
has just been approved. Residents will enjoy the 
best of gentrifi ed suburban living with easy access 
to amenities in the Dulwich Hill and Summer Hill 
town centres. The site is also conveniently located 
next to a new light rail station that began operations 
in March. 

Land prices in the neighbourhood have appreciated 
by over 70% since our purchase. There are keen 
Asian investors including fi rst-time buyers who are 
eager to benefi t from stamp duty relief entitlement. 



CHAIRMAN’S MESSAGE

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/20146

Prospects

We are optimistic about our hotel prospects 
for FY 2014/15, given our brand recognition 
and anticipated growth. Our Adelaide hotels 
are in recovery mode and we are implementing 
group-wide room refurbishments as well as F&B 
outlet upgrading to augment revenue. Lower 
contributions are expected from Stamford Grand 
North Ryde due to its closure for redevelopment 
into Macquarie Park Village in the third quarter 
of 2014. 

Earnings from the property investment segment will 
remain stable, underpinned by fi xed lease income 
of over A$11 million per annum from Dynons Plaza 
in Perth until 2020. Our successful Macquarie Park 
Village project will be followed by Dulwich Hill and 
others in the pipeline, generating rewarding returns 
upon their completion. With our solid fi nancial 
position, we are looking to further invest in hotel 
and commercial properties as well as purchase 
land for more property developments. 

Appreciation

I am grateful to our Board of Directors for their 
wise counsel and take this opportunity to welcome 
Mr Douglas Chester who came onboard as an 
independent director in July 2013. Prior to his 
retirement, he was Australia’s High Commissioner 
to Singapore from 2008 to 2012. 

I would like to thank our management and staff  
for their unstinting eff orts to ensure that the Group 
continues to fl ourish and perpetuate the Stamford 
hallmark of excellence. We are grateful to our 
customers for their patronage and promise to 
make every Stamford experience unforgettable.

Last but not least, we will continue in our quest 
to deliver value to our shareholders. Thank you for 
your confi dence and support.

C K Ow AO

Executive Chairman
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

C K OW AO 01

Executive Chairman

Mr Ow is the Executive Chairman of Stamford Land 
Corporation Ltd (“SLC”). He is also the Executive 
Chairman of Singapore Shipping Corporation 
Limited (“SSC”), which is listed on the SGX-ST. 
Mr Ow holds directorships in most of SLC’s and 
SSC’s subsidiaries.

In 2009, Mr Ow was named Businessman of the 
Year at the Singapore Business Awards which 
was jointly organised by The Business Times and 
DHL. In 2012, he was awarded Honorary Offi  cer 
in the Order of Australia by the Commonwealth
of Australia in recognition of his distinguished 
service towards the development of commercial 
relations and identifying business opportunities 
between Australia and Singapore.

Mr Ow is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Shipbrokers and also Singapore’s non-resident 
Ambassador to Argentina.

OW CHEO GUAN 02

Executive Deputy Chairman

Mr Ow is the Executive Deputy Chairman of SLC. 
He is also the Executive Deputy Chairman of SSC 
and holds directorships in most of SLC’s and 
SSC’s subsidiaries. 

Mr Ow is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered 
Shipbrokers and is the Honorary Consul of the 
Slovak Republic in Singapore.

OW YEW HENG 03

Executive Director

Mr Ow, who is the Executive Director of SLC,
is involved in the overall management of the 
Group’s businesses, including the areas of 
strategy development, operations, marketing 
communications, fi nance and human resources. 
Mr Ow is also involved in the evaluation of new 
business opportunities for the Group, including 
feasibility studies on potential developments, 
investments and transactions. 

Mr Ow, son of the Group’s Executive Chairman, is 
also an Executive Director of SSC.

DR TAN CHIN NAM 04

Independent Director

Dr Tan is a Senior Corporate Adviser holding 
directorships in various companies including 
Stamford Land Corporation Ltd, Yeo Hiap Seng 
Limited, Raffl  es Education Corporation Ltd, Gallant 
Venture Ltd, PSA International Pte Ltd, Temasek 
Management Services Pte Ltd (Chairman) and 
Sino-Singapore Guangzhou Knowledge City 
Investment and Development Co Ltd (China). He 
is a Senior Adviser of Salim Group, Singbridge 
Corporate Pte Ltd, ZANA Capital, Litmus Group 
Pte Ltd, a Trustee of Bankinter Board of Innovation 
(Spain) and a Principal Member of Green Finance 
Corporation.

Dr Tan, formerly a Permanent Secretary, held top 
leadership positions in National Computer Board, 
Economic Development Board, Singapore Tourism 
Board, National Library Board, Media Development 
Authority, Ministry of Manpower and Ministry of 
Information, Communications and the Arts. He was 
awarded four National Day Public Administration 
Medals.

Dr Tan obtained his degrees in Industrial Engineering 
and Economics from the University of Newcastle, 
Australia, Master of Business Administration from 
the University of Bradford, United Kingdom and 
two Honorary Doctorates.

HON. MARK ANTHONY JAMES VAILE AO 05

Independent Director

Mr Vaile was Australia’s Deputy Prime Minister 
and leader of the Federal National Party from June 
2005 to November 2007. As Australia’s Minister 
for Trade from July 1999 to September 2006, Mr 
Vaile was responsible for negotiating Australia’s 
free trade agreements with the United States, 
Singapore and Thailand and led Australia’s drive 
to free up global trade through the World Trade 
Organization. Mr Vaile has also held the ministerial 
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portfolios of Transport and Regional Development 
(twice) and Agriculture, Fisheries and Forestry 
(1998-1999).

Mr Vaile, who served as an elected member of 
the Australian Parliament since 1993, retired from 
political life in July 2008 to pursue a career in the 
private sector. In recognition of his distinguished 
service during his political career (including the 
successful pursuant of global trade and investment 
opportunities), the Commonwealth of Australia 
awarded Mr Vaile the Order of Australia in 2012.

Mr Vaile is the Chairman of Palisade Investment 
Partners Limited, the Non-Executive Chairman 
of Whitehaven Coal Limited and the Non-
Executive Director of Servcorp Limited. He also 
holds directorship in Virgin Blue Holdings Limited 
(Listed on Australian Securities Exchange). 
He is also a director on the Board of Trustees of 
HostPlus Superfund.

LIM HWEE HUA 06

Lead Independent Director

Mrs Lim was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive director of SLC on 26 July 2012.

Mrs Lim was fi rst elected to Parliament in December 
1996 and served till May 2011. She last served as 
Minister in the Prime Minister’s Offi  ce, Singapore, 
and concurrently as Second Minister for Finance 
and Transport from April 2009 to May 2011. Prior 
to joining the Singapore Cabinet, she enjoyed a 
varied career in fi nancial services, including stints 
at Temasek Holdings as Managing Director (2000 - 
2004) and Jardine Fleming (1992 - 2000).

Mrs Lim graduated with a Master of Arts (Honours) 
in Mathematics/Engineering from the University of 
Cambridge in 1981, on a Singapore Government’s 
Overseas Merit Scholarship. In 1989, she obtained 
a Master of Business Administration, major in 

Finance, from the Anderson School of Management, 
University of California at Los Angeles.

Mrs Lim is concurrently an Executive Director 
of Tembusu Partners Pte Ltd, a Senior Advisor 
to global investment fi rm Kohlberg, Kravis and 
Roberts, an Independent Non-Executive Director 
of SGX Mainboard-listed Jardine Cycle & Carriage 
Ltd and BW Group Limited, a Member of the Asia 
Advisory Board of Westpac Institutional Bank. 

Mrs Lim was an Independent Non-Executive 
Member of the Ernst & Young Global Advisory 
Council from 2011 to 2014. 

DOUGLAS OWEN CHESTER 07

Independent Director

Mr Chester was appointed as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of SLC on 25 July 2013.

Mr Chester has had an illustrious career with the 
Australian Public Service for over 33 years up 
until his retirement in 2012. His key appointments 
with the Australian Public Service include deputy 
secretary of the Australian Department of 
Foreign Aff airs and Trade (DFAT) (2003-2008), 
Australia’s Ambassador to Asia-Pacifi c Economic 
Cooperation (2005), Australia’s high commissioner 
to Brunei (2000) and most recently, Australia’s high 
commissioner to Singapore (2008-2012). Prior to 
joining DFAT in 1990, he had an 11-year career 
with the then Australian Patent, Trade Marks and 
Design Offi  ce as a patent examiner. Before that he 
worked at the Australian National University as a 
research scientist.

Mr Chester graduated from the Australian National 
University in 1976 with a Bachelor of Science 
(Hons) degree. Mr Chester is concurrently a Lead 
Independent Director of Kim Heng Off shore & 
Marine Holdings Limited and an Independent 
Director of Civmec Limited.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE

HOTEL OWNING 
AND MANAGEMENT

Atrington Trust

Dickensian Holdings Ltd

Goldenlines Investments Limited

HSH (Australia) Trust

HSH Contractors Pte Ltd

K.R.M.F.C. Pty Ltd

Logan Trust

Minteyville Lt Collins Street Pty Ltd

MLCS Trust

North Ryde Investments Limited

Ovenard Trust

RGA Trust

SNR Trust

Sir Stamford at Circular Quay Pty Ltd

Sir Stamford Hotels & Resorts Pte Ltd

Stamford Cairns Trust

Stamford Gold Coast Trust

Stamford Heritage Pty Ltd

Stamford Hotels and Resorts Pty Limited

Stamford Hotels & Resorts Pte Ltd

Stamford Hotels (NZ) Limited

Stamford Hotels Pty Ltd

Stamford Mayfair Limited

Stamford Plaza Sydney Management Pty Limited

Stamford Raffl  es Pty Ltd

Stamford Sydney Airport Pty Ltd

Terrace Hotel (Operations) Pty Ltd

The Grand Hotel (S.A.) Pty Ltd

The Grand Hotel Unit Trust

TIA Trust

PROPERTY 
DEVELOPMENT

Fontelle Trust

SLC Campsie Pty Ltd 

Stamford Property Services Pty. Limited 

Stamford Raffl  es Trust

PROPERTY 
INVESTMENT

HSH Properties Pte Ltd

Knoxville Trust

TRADING

Singapore Wallcoverings Centre 
(Private) Limited

Varimerx S.E.Asia Pte Ltd

Voyager Travel Pte Ltd

OTHERS

HSH Tanker Inc.

Stamford Land (International) Pte Ltd

Stamford Land Management Pte Ltd
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FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

           Group   
           Year ended 31 March   
All Figures in $’000   2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
         
Revenue      238,721  250,704  485,995  266,742  278,727 
         
Profi t Before Tax    35,886 * 81,098  69,328  42,450  34,442 
Deferred Tax Charge   (5,686) (17,029) (6,231) (3,660) 451 
Income Tax Expense   (1,706) (3,960) (9,711) (7,094) (7,765)
Profi t Attributable to Shareholders 28,494  60,109  53,386  31,696  27,128 

Earnings per Share (cents) 3.3 * 7.0  6.2  3.7  3.1 

Dividend per Share (cents) 2.0  3.0  4.0  3.0  3.0 
         
* The prior year’s fi gures have been adjusted to refl ect the change in accounting policies.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

REVENUE ($’000) PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE 
TO SHAREHOLDERS ($’000)

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

238,721

250,704

485,995

266,742

278,727

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

28,494

60,109

53,386

31,696

27,128
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FIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARYFIVE-YEAR GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FINANCIAL POSITION

NET ASSETS ($’000) NET TANGIBLE 
ASSETS PER SHARE ($)

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

451,062 

491,512

525,130

520,736

491,639

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

0.52

0.57

0.61

0.60

0.57

           Group   
           Year ended 31 March   
All Figures in $’000   2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
         
Property, Plant and Equipment 473,288  475,541  482,891  478,604  465,430  
Investment Properties  28,911 * 192,889  213,281  224,411  203,534  
Properties under Development 103,547   –  –  –  –  
Available-for-Sale Investments 382  392  347  384  347  
Current Assets     283,556  395,256  250,259  225,830  227,130  
Current Liabilities    (66,784) (230,292) (176,942) (353,176) (250,022) 
Non-Current Liabilities  (373,832) (326,652) (222,813) (29,924) (132,413) 
Deferred Tax Assets   3,800  1,151  3,211  2,108  2,384  
Deferred Tax Liabilities  (1,806) (16,773) (25,104) (27,501) (24,751) 
Net Assets      451,062  491,512  525,130  520,736  491,639  
 
Share Capital and Reserves 451,062 * 491,512  525,130  520,736  491,639  
Capital Employed   451,062  491,512  525,130  520,736  491,639  
 
Net Tangible Assets per Share ($) 0.52 * 0.57  0.61  0.60  0.57  
       
* The prior year’s fi gures have been adjusted to refl ect the change in accounting policies.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

Our hotel ownership and management business 
performed creditably with operating profi t rising 
by 5.6% from the last fi nancial year (“FY”) to 
S$40.7 million. This is despite a weaker Australian 
dollar, which slid more than 9% in 2014. 

Strong demand by local corporates in Australia 
bolstered the Group’s overall hotel occupancy 
rate to 85.6%, refl ecting a 3.3% increase. 
Revenue per available room (“revpar”) for our 
stable of eight hotels rose by 4.3% over the 
previous year, led by sterling performances from 
Sir Stamford at Circular Quay, Stamford Plaza 
Melbourne, and Stamford Plaza Auckland. 
In fact, the Group’s revenue from this segment 
increased by 3% in Australian Dollar terms, 
although a weaker Australian dollar resulted in 
lower translated revenue of S$213.6 million.

Sir Stamford at Circular Quay achieved yet 
another year of excellent results, with gross 
operating profi t (“GOP”) growth of 22.0% over 
the last FY. Overall, revpar increased by 10.5% at 
the back of higher occupancy and average room 
rates. Food & beverage (“F&B”) segment also saw 
healthy growth backed by strong performances 
from its residential conferencing segment. 

This award winning hotel has been consistently 
recognised for its quality and service. This year, 
Sir Stamford at Circular Quay was awarded the 
accolade of 2014 Trip Advisor Travellers’ Choice 
Award again. This is the second consecutive year 
that the hotel has received this award. With its 
favourable location, distinctive style and service 

excellence, Sir Stamford at Circular Quay is 
well placed to continue its sterling performance 
in FY2015.

The Stamford Plaza Sydney Airport delivered a 
set of commendable results with GOP growth of 
11.8%. Revpar rose by 4% over the previous FY, as 
the hotel achieved higher occupancy and average 
room rates through eff ective rooms yield strategy. 
This was accomplished despite the opening of The 
Rydges in May 2014, which added 318 new room 
inventories in the Sydney airport region.

Notwithstanding increased competition, Stamford 
Plaza Sydney Airport continues to be recognised 
as the top hotel in the Sydney airport region. This 
year, the hotel was voted “Sydney’s Best Airport 
Hotel” for the fourth consecutive year and “Best 
Airport Hotel in Australia/Pacifi c Region” by the 
prestigious World Airport Skytrax Awards.

Plans are underway for a major revamp of the 
hotel’s guestrooms and restaurants to augment 
its status as the choice hotel in the Sydney airport 
region and to enhance future revenue.

Riding on strong demand from the leisure 
market, Stamford Grand North Ryde achieved 
a GOP increase of 4.1% over the previous FY. 
Revpar increased by 2.2% at the back of a 4.1% 
increase in occupancy. The hotel is scheduled 
to close its operations in the third quarter of this 
calendar year for redevelopment into Macquarie 
Park Village (“MPV”), the Group’s latest residential 
project which is 96% pre-sold with a total gross sale 
of A$427 million as at 31 May 2014.

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
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Award Winning Showfl at at

The Stamford Residences 

& The Reynell Terraces



OPERATIONS REVIEW

Stamford Grand Adelaide performed well in a 
competitive Adelaide market, achieving an overall 
revpar increase of 1.6%. GOP increased by 
3.4% at the back of higher room revenue and 
effi  cient cost management.

The Group is planning a series of major 
refurbishment programs in the coming year to 
rejuvenate this beach-front hotel in Glenelg. 
The hotel’s 220 guest rooms will be refreshed and 
its banquet facilities will be enhanced to extend 
the hotel’s reach to niche segments of business 
and leisure guests. Upon completion, this will 
reinforce the hotel’s position as the only 5-star hotel 
in Glenelg and augment future revenue.

GOP for Stamford Plaza Adelaide declined 
marginally by 2% due to a major room 
refurbishment program spanning over a period of 
seven months. In addition, the hotel underwent 
an extensive revamp of an existing F&B outlet 

to create an Argentinean eatery La Boca, 
serving authentic delectable chargrilled cuisine. 
La Boca transforms into a night club Viva La 
Boca during the weekends, after restaurant 
hours. The restaurant/club has been very popular 
since its debut in March 2014 and plans are 
underway to open a second La Boca outlet in 
Stamford Plaza Melbourne.

The Adelaide market continues to be challenging 
with some 600 new rooms inventory coming 
on-stream. However, with the completion of its 
A$7.7 million room refurbishment and the 
successful debut of La Boca, Stamford Plaza 
Adelaide is well positioned to overcome the 
competitive environment and is expected to 
contribute positively in the coming year.

Stamford Plaza Melbourne was named 
“Apartment/Suite Accommodation of the Year” 
by the Australian Hotel Association State Awards.

LaBoca Argentinean Bar & Grill, Stamford Plaza Adelaide 
“Adelaide has its fi rst asado, the Argentinian-Style open fi re pit over which large cuts or sides of meat are grilled in traditional 
parrilla” (Source: The Advertiser)

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

In addition to the accolade received, the hotel 
achieved excellent results for the fi nancial year. 
Higher occupancy and average room rates were 
attained, resulting in strong revpar growth of 
7.5%. This is further complemented by better 
performance from its F&B segment, resulting in 
overall GOP growth of 12.4%. 

The hotel recently completed its refurbishment of 
the pool, spa and Presidential Suite, and plans 
are in progress to add another 24 suites to its 
existing room inventory. A major refurbishment 
program is also underway to transform Harry’s 
Restaurant into Argentinean eatery La Boca. 
This will be the Group’s second La Boca outlet 
following the success of Stamford Plaza Adelaide’s 
La Boca.

Stamford Plaza Brisbane achieved revpar 
increase of 2.5% on the back of higher average 
room rate of 1.5% and occupancy growth of 0.8% 

over the last FY. However, GOP fell by 2.9% due to 
higher operating expenses. 

The hotel did particularly well in the internal 
conference segment and also acquired new 
corporate accounts. On top of its core corporate 
and conference businesses, the property was also 
able to ride on special city-hosted sporting events, 
such as the British & Irish Lions Tour and Ashes 
Test Series. 

The Brisbane market is expected to remain soft 
in the coming FY. However, Stamford Plaza 
Brisbane is privileged to be selected as one of 
the leading hotels for the G20 Summit which 
will be held in Brisbane in the fourth quarter of 
2014. This is expected to contribute positively to 
the hotel’s performance. To augment the hotel’s 
bottom line, the property will continue to stay 
focused on cost effi  ciency management and 
productivity improvement. 

The Par Bar, Stamford Plaza Brisbane
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

A refurbishment program is in the pipeline for 
19 suites in Stamford Plaza Brisbane, in addition 
to a major lift upgrade. When completed, this will 
further enhance guests’ experience and reaffi  rm 
Stamford Plaza Brisbane as the undisputed top 
choice hotel in Brisbane.

Stamford Plaza Auckland, a QualMark certifi ed 
5-star hotel, delivered a notable GOP increase 
of 11.5% in the last FY. With improved business 
sentiments, the hotel enjoyed higher revenue 
streams from both Rooms and F&B segments. 
Strong occupancy drove revpar up by 5.8% 
whilst F&B revenue growth was bolstered by 
eff ective marketing and social media campaigns. 

To maintain its competitive edge and augment 
future revenue, the hotel will be undergoing a major 
refurbishment of its 284 rooms over a six month 
period. As a result, the hotel’s revenue is expected 
to be lower in the coming FY. 

Property Development

Operating profi t of our Property Development 
segment fell by 15.4% over the last FY to S$575,000 
despite a 118% increase in property sales revenue 
to S$47.9 million. Higher property sales revenue 
was off set by marketing and advertising costs 
spent on the Macquarie Park Village, whose sales 
proceeds will be recognised only upon project 
completion in 2017.

One commercial unit and four apartments in The 
Stamford Residences and The Reynell Terraces 
were sold with total sales revenue of A$14 million. 
Subsequently to 31 March 2014, another unit 
was sold at A$5.3 million. The project has two 
penthouses and two terraces remaining for sale. 

The Group sold 36 units of The Stamford 
Residences, totalling NZ$28.0 million in the last 
FY at the back of improving sentiments in the New 

Knights on Albert restaurant, Stamford Plaza Auckland
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OPERATIONS REVIEW

 Overwhelming response on launching day of MPV

Zealand economy and Auckland residential property 
market. As at 31 May 2014, a further 8 apartment 
units have been sold totalling NZ$7.2million. Of the 
remaining 21 units, 4 units have been leased out. 

The Group aims to maximise its asset values 
through the best use of land. Redevelopment 
and change of use opportunities of its properties 
are constantly evaluated to ensure highest 
end-value. It is well positioned to ride on the 
robust Sydney residential property market with 
3 exciting development projects in the pipeline. 

Macquarie Park Village (“MPV”), to be built on the 
site where Stamford Grand North Ryde is currently 

operating, is located in the thriving Macquarie 
Park – New South Wales’ fourth largest business 
centre. MPV is a 20-minute drive away from 
Sydney CBD. With the Macquarie University next 
door and Macquarie Shopping Centre and train 
station within a 5-minutes walk, this attractive 
project is a runaway success with pre-sales of 
96%. As at 31 May 2014, only 22 units of the 
648 units project were left. The A$460 million 
mixed-use development, comprising seven towers, 
is slated to begin construction in third quarter 
of this calendar year with completion expected 
in 2017.
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Artist’s Impression of Macquarie 

Park VIllage, North Ryde



The current site of Sir Stamford at Circular Quay 
on the historic Macquarie Street is another 
potential redevelopment with excellent prospects 
due to its exclusive location. Located at the heart 
of Sydney’s CBD, it is within walking distance 
to the world-renowned Opera House, Sydney 
Harbour and Royal Botanical Gardens. Following 
its recent conversion to freehold status, the Group 
has lodged its development application (“DA”) to 
redevelop the property into a 19-storey building 
comprising of 104 residential apartments with 
total saleable area of about 11,000 square metres, 
and 1,354 square metres of retail and commercial 
space. The DA includes retention and adaptive 
reuse of the heritage Health Department Building.

The Group will continue to operate the profi table Sir 
Stamford at Circular Quay at its current premises. 
Timing of the redevelopment will be dependent 
on the level of pre-sales and the approval of the 
development application. 

Another exciting Sydney residential development 
in the pipeline is the proposed development in 

Dulwich Hill. The Group’s A$23 million acquisition 
of the freehold properties at 6-22 Grove Street 
and 60-64 Constitution Road was completed in 
February 2014 and the proposed plan to build 
247 apartments on this 10,000 square-metre 
freehold site has just been approved. 

Located just 8 km from Sydney’s CBD, this sought-
after location, near the Dulwich Hill and Summer 
Hill town centres, is in one of Sydney Inner West’s 
most established residential enclaves. The site is 
conveniently located next to a new light rail station, 
which commenced operations in March 2014.

Property Investment

The Property Investment segment continues to 
post stable results with good rental income from 
Dynons Plaza Perth. However, a weaker Australian 
Dollar resulted in a lower translated operating 
profi t of S$12.1 million despite a 5% increase in 
rental income.

This prime CBD property will continue to generate 
a steady fl ow of rental revenue. It is on a 10-year 
lease to Chevron Australia until April 2020.
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HOTEL PORTFOLIO

22-26 Albert Street, Auckland, New Zealand

STAMFORD PLAZA 
AUCKLAND

STAMFORD PLAZA
ADELAIDE 

STAMFORD GRAND 
ADELAIDE 

(64 9) 309 8888

(64 9) 379 6445

reservations@spak.stamford.com.au

150 North Terrace, Adelaide, South Australia 5000

(61 8) 8461 1111

(61 8) 8231 7572

reservations@spa.stamford.com.au

2 Jetty Road, Glenelg, South Australia 5045

(61 8) 8376 1222

(61 8) 8376 1111

reservations@sga.stamford.com.au
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HOTEL PORTFOLIO

Corner Edward & Margaret Streets, Brisbane, 
Queensland 4000

STAMFORD PLAZA 
BRISBANE 

STAMFORD PLAZA 
MELBOURNE 

SIR STAMFORD AT 
CIRCULAR QUAY 

(61 7) 3221 1999

(61 7) 3221 6895

reservations@spb.stamford.com.au

111 Little Collins Street, Melbourne, Victoria 3000

(61 3) 9659 1000

(61 3) 9659 0999

reservations@spm.stamford.com.au

93 Macquarie Street, Sydney, New South Wales 2000

(61 2) 9252 4600

(61 2) 9252 4286

reservations@sscq.stamford.com.au
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HOTEL PORTFOLIO

Corner Robey & O’Riordan Streets, Mascot, 
New South Wales 2020

STAMFORD PLAZA 
SYDNEY AIRPORT 

STAMFORD GRAND 
NORTH RYDE 

(61 2) 9317 2200

(61 2) 9317 3855

reservations@spsa.stamford.com.au

Corner Epping & Herring Roads, North Ryde, 
New South Wales 2113

(61 2) 9888 1077

(61 2) 9805 0655

reservations@snr.stamford.com.au

Perth

Brisbane

Sydney

Melbourne

Adelaide
Auckland

Legend:

Hotel

Property Investment

Property Development
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HOTEL PORTFOLIO

HOTELS LOCATIONS ROOMS RATING TENURE

Stamford Plaza Auckland Auckland 286 5-star Freehold

Stamford Plaza Adelaide Adelaide 336 5-star Freehold

Stamford Grand Adelaide Adelaide 220 5-star Freehold

Stamford Plaza Brisbane Brisbane 252 5-star 65 years lease 
from 2000

Stamford Plaza Melbourne Melbourne 283 5-star all suite Freehold

Sir Stamford at Circular Quay Sydney 105 5-star Freehold

Stamford Plaza Sydney Airport Sydney 314 5-star Freehold

Stamford Grand North Ryde Sydney 257 4½ -star all suite Freehold

Viva LaBoca, Stamford Plaza Adelaide
“The best spot in town to drink and dance”
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

LOCATION TITLE DESCRIPTION

Bank of NSW Building, Perth (Australia) Freehold 2-storey commercial and retail building

China Hall Building, Perth (Australia) Freehold 2-storey commercial and retail building

The West Building, Perth (Australia) Freehold 2-storey commercial and retail building

Dynon’s Plaza, Perth (Australia) Freehold 14-storey commercial building

Southpoint Building (Singapore) 99 years lease 
from 1985 One fl oor of offi  ce building 

LOCATION TITLE DESCRIPTION

The Stamford Residences, Auckland
(New Zealand) Freehold 21 luxury units 

of residential apartments

The Stamford Residences & The Reynell 
Terraces, Sydney (Australia)

99 years lease 
from 2010

2 Commercial and retail units; and 
4 luxury units of residential apartments

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE:

LAND AND BUILDINGS:

LOCATION TITLE NO. OF 
ROOMS DESCRIPTION

Stamford Plaza, Auckland
(New Zealand) Freehold 286 5-Star hotel

Stamford Plaza. Adelaide 
(Australia) Freehold 336 5-Star hotel

Stamford Grand, Adelaide 
(Australia) Freehold 220 5-Star hotel

Stamford Plaza, Brisbane 
(Australia)

65 years lease 
from 2000 252 5-Star hotel

Stamford Plaza, Melbourne 
(Australia) Freehold 283 5-Star all suite hotel

Sir Stamford at Circular Quay, Sydney 
(Australia) Freehold 105 5-Star hotel

Stamford Plaza Sydney Airport, Sydney 
(Australia) Freehold 314 5-Star hotel

Stamford Grand North Ryde, Sydney 
(Australia) Freehold 257 4½ Star all suite hotel
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Exquisite old-world charm of Sir Stamford at Circular Quay

LOCATION TITLE

STAGE OF 
DEVELOPMENT/ 

ESTIMATED
FINANCIAL YEAR 
OF COMPLETION

TOTAL 
SITE 
AREA

DESCRIPTION
% 

INTEREST

Macquarie 
Park Village, 
Sydney Australia
- 110 -114
 Herring Road, 
Macquarie Park

Freehold Completion expected 
in 2017

22,000 
sq. m

Mixed-use 
development, 
comprising 648 units 
across seven tower

100

Dulwich Hill, 
Sydney Australia
- 6-22 Grove Street
- 60 -64 Constitution Road

Freehold

Planning approved/
granted in June 2014
Completion expected 
in 2017

10,000 
sq. m

247 units of 
residential apartments 100

DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES FOR SALE
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SHAREHOLDER CALENDAR

Annual General Meeting for fi nancial year ended 
31 March 2014 (FY 2014)

Announcement of fi nancial year ending 
31 March 2015 (FY 2015) fi rst quarter results

Scheduled payment of fi nal dividend for FY 2014

Announcement of FY 2015 second quarter results

Announcement of FY 2015 third quarter results

Announcement of FY 2015 full year results

July 2014

August 2014

November 2014

February 2015

May 2015

The Stamford Residences, Auckland
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Stamford Land Corporation Ltd (the “Company”) is committed to achieve a high standard of corporate 
governance, promote corporate transparency and protect shareholders’ interests. 

The Company is pleased to confi rm that the Company has adopted corporate governance practices 
which are in line with the principles and guidelines of the revised Code of Corporate Governance 2012 
(the “2012 Code”) which supercedes the Code of Corporate Governance 2005, where it is applicable 
and practical. 

This statement sets out the Company’s main corporate governance practices with reference to the 
2012 Code. 

1.  BOARD MATTERS

Principle 1: The Board’s Conduct of Aff airs 

The current Board comprises seven directors and their principal functions are to:

• Formulate corporate strategies, fi nancial objectives and directions for the Group

• Ensure eff ective management leadership of the highest quality and integrity 

• Provide oversight in the proper conduct of the Group’s businesses

• Oversee and/or evaluate the adequacy of the internal audit, risk management, fi nancial reporting
 and compliance processes

• Oversee and ensure high standards of corporate governance for the Group

The Board also deliberates and makes decisions on material acquisitions and disposals of assets, 
corporate restructuring, dividend payments and other returns to shareholders and on matters that 
may involve a confl ict of interest for any director.

All new directors are given an orientation of the Group’s business and governance practices, and all 
directors have appropriate access to information. The Company is responsible for arranging regular 
training programmes for the Company’s directors from time to time to keep them up to date on the 
current developments, particularly on changes to relevant new laws and regulations, and changing 
commercial risks, to enable them to make informed decisions and to ensure that the directors are 
competent in carrying out their expected roles and responsibilities.

To effi  ciently discharge its responsibilities, the Board has established several board committees, 
namely, the Executive Committee, Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nominating Committee 
and Remuneration Committee. These committees are given specifi c responsibilities and they are 
empowered by the Board to deal with matters within the limits of authority set out in their respective 
terms of reference. They assist the Board operationally without the Board losing authority over 
major issues.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Board currently holds at least four scheduled meetings each year to review and deliberate 
on the key activities and business strategies of the Group, including signifi cant acquisitions and 
disposals, fi nancial performance and to endorse the release of the quarterly and annual results. 
Where necessary, additional meetings are held to address signifi cant transactions or issues arising 
from the business operations of the Group.

The frequency of Board, Audit and Risk Management Committee, Nominating Committee and 
Remuneration Committee meetings held during the fi nancial year and the attendance at those 
meetings are set out below: 

 Number of meetings attended during the 
 fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014

         Audit
         and Risk
        Board of  Management  Nominating  Remuneration
Name of Director   Directors  Committee Committee  Committee

Ow Chio Kiat 
(Executive Chairman and Executive Director) 4 #4 1 NA
Ow Cheo Guan
(Executive Deputy Chairman and Executive Director) 4 #4 NA NA
Ow Yew Heng
(Executive Director)   4 #4 NA NA
Tan Chin Nam 
(Independent and Non-executive Director) 4 4 NA 1
Mark Anthony James Vaile 
(Independent and Non-executive Director) 4 4 1 1
Lim Hwee Hua 
(Lead Independent and Non-executive Director) 3 3 1 1
Douglas Owen Chester (1)

(Independent and Non-executive Director) 3 3 NA NA

Number of meetings held   4 4 1 1

#     By Invitation
NA   Not applicable

Note:

(1)  Appointed on 25 July 2013

  Matters requiring the Board’s approval

The following is a list of key matters that require the Board’s approval:

• quarterly and full year results announcements;

• annual report and accounts;

• declaration of dividends;

• strategic plans; and

• major acquisitions / disposals.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principle 2: Board Composition and Guidance 

In keeping up with the recommendations of the 2012 Code that at least half of the Board should be 
made up of Independent Directors, the Board of Directors consists of seven members, four of whom 
are Independent and Non-executive Directors. 

Executive Directors

Ow Chio Kiat     (Executive Chairman and Executive Director)
Ow Cheo Guan    (Executive Deputy Chairman and Executive Director)
Ow Yew Heng     (Executive Director)

  Independent and Non-executive Directors

Lim Hwee Hua    (Lead Independent and Non-executive Director) 
Tan Chin Nam     (Independent and Non-executive Director)
Mark Anthony James Vaile  (Independent and Non-executive Director)
Douglas Owen Chester   (Independent and Non-executive Director)

The above composition complies with the 2012 Code’s requirement. The appointment and 
retirement of directors is recommended by the Nominating Committee to the Board. In addition, 
the Nominating Committee also reviews annually the independence of each director and board 
succession planning. To date, none of the Independent and Non-executive Directors have served 
on the Board for more than nine years. The Board is of the view that the current Board comprises 
persons who as a group, provide core competencies necessary to meet the Company’s requirements 
and that the current board size is adequate, taking into account the nature and scope of the 
Company’s operations.

The Board encourages the Independent and Non-executive Directors to meet without the presence 
of Management.

Our directors’ profi les are set out on pages 7 and 9 of this Annual Report. Our Board members have 
the appropriate breadth and depth of industry expertise and experience in the areas of accounting, 
fi nance, business, management and strategic planning. 

Principle 3: Role of Executive Chairman (the “Chairman”) and Chief Executive Offi  cer (the “CEO”)

Ow Chio Kiat is the Chairman and CEO. The role of the Chairman is not separate from that of the 
CEO as the Board believes that there is adequate accountability and transparency. Major decisions 
are made in consultation with the Board which comprises a majority of Independent and Non-
executive Directors. The Board believes that there are adequate measures in place against any 
uneven concentration of power and authority in one individual. 

As recommended by the 2012 Code, on 5 February 2013 the Board has appointed Independent 
Director, Lim Hwee Hua, as Lead Independent Director. The Lead Independent Director shall be 
available to shareholders where they have concerns for which contact through the normal channels 
of the Chairman and CEO has failed to resolve or for which such contact is inappropriate. The Lead 
Independent Director may call for meetings of Independent Directors from time to time without the 
presence of other directors and provide feedback to the Chairman after such meetings.
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Executive Committee (“Exco”)

Moreover the Board has delegated to the Exco the powers to supervise the management of the 
Group’s business activities. The Exco currently comprises:

Ow Chio Kiat   Chairman 
Ow Cheo Guan  Member 
Lim Hwee Hua   Member 

Ow Cheo Guan is the Executive Deputy Chairman of the Company. The Chairman and the Executive 
Deputy Chairman are brothers.

The Exco’s responsibilities include reviewing and approving investments or divestments, other than 
operational expenditure or disposals that are conducted in the ordinary course of business.

The Chairman is assisted by the management team in the daily operations and administration of the 
Group’s business activities and in the eff ective implementation of the Group’s business strategies.

The Chairman also oversees the workings of the Board, ensuring that the Board is able to perform 
its duties and that there is an adequate fl ow of information between the Board and the Management. 
The Chairman reviews the board papers before they are presented to the Board. The management 
staff  who have prepared the papers, or who may provide additional insights, are invited to present 
the papers or attend the board meetings.

Principle 4: Board Membership

We believe that board renewal must be an on-going process to ensure good governance and 
maintain relevance to the changing needs of the Group’s businesses.

  Nominating Committee (“NC”)

To achieve a formal and transparent process for the appointment of directors to the Board, 
the Company has established the NC to make recommendations to the Board on all board 
appointments. The NC is responsible for identifying and selecting new directors. In compliance 
with the 2012 Code, the Chairman of the NC is an Independent and Non-executive Director and 
is not associated with a substantial shareholder, and the majority of the NC members, including 
its chairman, is independent. It comprises two Independent and Non-executive Directors and one 
Executive Director, namely:

Mark Anthony James Vaile  Chairman 
Lim Hwee Hua    Member 
Ow Chio Kiat    Member 
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The NC’s principal functions are to:

• Decide on and propose to the Board, for approval and implementation, the assessment 
process including determining a set of objective performance criteria for evaluating the Board’s 
performance from year to year

• Evaluate the Board’s performance and the contributions of each director to the eff ectiveness 
of the Board in accordance with the assessment process and performance criteria 
mentioned above

• Identifying, reviewing and recommending Board appointments for approval by the Board, taking 
into account the experience, expertise, knowledge and skills of the candidate and the needs of 
the Board

• Reviewing and recommending to the Board re-appointment of directors having regard to their 
performance, commitment, skill sets and ability to contribute to the Board

• Review the appropriate size of the Board

• Determine annually whether or not a director is independent in accordance with the guidelines on 
independence as set out in the 2012 Code 

Internal guidelines have been established to address the competing time commitments faced by 
directors due to multiple board representations. All directors are required to declare their board 
representations. The NC has reviewed the abilities of each director and is satisfi ed that each director 
is able to devote adequate time and attention to the aff airs of the Company to fulfi l his/her duties as 
a director of the Company. The NC conducts a review of the time commitment of each director on 
an ongoing basis. The Board believes that each director should personally determine the demands 
of his or her competing directorships and obligations and assess how much time is available to 
serve on the Board eff ectively. Accordingly, the Board has reviewed and is satisfi ed with the time 
commitment of the directors and has not made a determination of the maximum number of board 
representations a director may hold.

All the directors are subject to the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association whereby one-
third of the directors are required to retire and subject themselves to re-election (“one-third rotation 
rule”) by the shareholders at every annual general meeting (“AGM”). 

A newly appointed director will have to submit himself for re-election at the AGM immediately 
following his appointment and, thereafter, he is subject to the one-third rotation rule.

The NC was satisfi ed that in FY2014, where a director had other listed company board representation 
and/or other principal commitments, the director was independent and was able to adequately carry 
out his duties as a director of the Company. 
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Principle 5: Board Performance

The Company holds the belief that the Group’s performance and that of the Board are directly 
related. The Company assesses the Board’s performance through its ability to steer the Group 
in the right direction and the support it renders to Management. For the purpose of evaluating 
directors’ performance, the NC takes into consideration a number of factors including the directors’ 
attendance, participation and level of participation and contributions at the main board and board 
committee meetings and other Company activities.

The NC uses its best eff orts to ensure that directors appointed to the Board possess the necessary 
background, experience, skills and knowledge in management, business and fi nance, critical to the 
Group’s business; and that each director is able to contribute his perspective, thus allowing eff ective 
decisions to be made. The NC conducts reviews of the Board’s performance taking into account 
inputs from the other Board members.

Principle 6: Access to Information

To enable the Board to fulfi l its responsibilities, it is provided with adequate information for Board 
meetings on a timely and an ongoing basis. Directors are given separate and independent access 
to the Company’s key management personnel and Company Secretaries to address any enquiries. 
The appointment and removal of Company Secretaries is a matter for the Board as a whole.

The Company Secretaries or their representatives attend all Board meetings and are responsible 
for ensuring that proper procedures at such meetings are followed. Together with the Company’s 
management, they are responsible to ensure that the Company complies with the requirements 
of the Companies Act, Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited 
(the “SGX-ST”) and other rules and regulations that are applicable to the Company.

A director or as a group, may seek professional advice in furtherance of their duties and the costs 
will be borne by the Company.

2.  REMUNERATION MATTERS

We believe in adopting a formal and transparent procedure for fi xing the remuneration packages of 
the directors and key management personnel so as to ensure that the level of remuneration should 
be appropriate to attract, retain and motivate the directors and key management personnel needed 
to run the Group’s business successfully.
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  Remuneration Committee (“RC”)

Principle 7: Procedures for Developing Remuneration Policies

The RC was formed to achieve this formal and transparent process to evaluate the remuneration 
packages of the directors and key management personnel. It comprises three Independent and 
Non-executive Directors, namely:

Tan Chin Nam     Chairman 
Mark Anthony James Vaile   Member 
Lim Hwee Hua     Member 

The RC is responsible for:

• Reviewing and determining appropriate adjustments as well as approving the remuneration of the 
Independent and Non-executive Directors, Executive Directors and key management personnel

• Administering any share incentive scheme implemented by the Company, and delegating the 
day-to-day administration of such plan or scheme to such persons as the RC deems fi t 

• Assuming other duties (if any) that may be required of the RC under the 2012 Code, and by the 
Listing Manual 

• Considering the disclosure requirements for directors’ and key management personnel 
remuneration as required by the 2012 Code

• Reviewing the Company’s obligations arising in the event of termination of the Executive Directors 
and key management personnel

The RC meets at least once a year. In setting the remuneration packages, the RC takes into account 
the pay and employment conditions within the industry and in comparable companies, as well as the 
profi tability of the Group as a whole, and individual performance. The RC is provided with access to 
expert professional advice on remuneration matters as and when necessary. The expenses of such 
services will be borne by the Company. 

No director is involved in any discussion relating to his own remuneration, and terms and conditions 
of service and the review of his own performance.

All directors are paid a fi xed board fee and additional fees are payable to a director for appointment 
as a chairman or member of a particular committee. The recommendations made by the RC in 
relation to such board fees are subject to approval by the shareholders at the AGM. 

The Company has no employee share scheme or any short/long term employee incentive scheme 
in place.

Principle 8: Level and Mix of Remuneration

The level and structure of the Group’s remuneration policy are aligned with its long-term interest and 
risk policies, as are appropriate to attract, retain and motivate directors to provide good stewardship, 
as well as to retain and motivate key management personnel to successfully manage the Group.
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Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration

The directors’ fees and remuneration paid/payable by the Group and the Company are as follows:

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Directors’ fees      
– Directors of the Company  289 260 270 240
   
Directors’ remuneration     
– Directors of the Company  2,045 2,272 339 332

          2,334 2,532 609 572

The following table shows a breakdown (in percentage terms) of the remuneration of directors for 
the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014:

        Directors’   Total
Remuneration bands Salary  Bonuses  fees (1)  Others  remuneration
      % % % % %

$1,500,000 to $1,750,000
–  Ow Chio Kiat  55 40 4 1 100
$250,000 to $500,000
– Ow Cheo Guan (2) 80 8 10 2 100
Below $250,000
– Ow Yew Heng (3) 49 27 14 10 100
– Tan Chin Nam  – – 100 – 100
– Mark Anthony James Vaile – – 100 – 100
– Lim Hwee Hua  – – 100 – 100
– Douglas Owen Chester – – 100 – 100

(1) Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at the annual general meeting.
(2) Ow Cheo Guan is the brother of the Chairman & CEO, Ow Chio Kiat.
(3) Ow Yew Heng is the son of the Chairman & CEO, Ow Chio Kiat.
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Principle 9: Disclosure on Remuneration (Cont’d) 

The remuneration bands and the composition of the remuneration of the top fi ve key management 
personnel (excluding Executive Directors of the Company) of the Group for the fi nancial year ended 
31 March 2014 are as follows:

Remuneration bands  Salary Bonuses Others Total
        % % % %

$500,000 to S$750,000    
– Anthony Rice   60 34 6 100
S$250,000 to S$500,000    
–  Tay Lai Wat    80 13 7 100
–  Thomas Ong   82 10 8 100
–  Jon Foo     90 6 4 100
Below S$250,000    
– Chua Siew Hwi 
 (appointed w.e.f. 16 September 2013) 85 8 7 100

The aggregate amount of the total remuneration paid to the key management personnel (who are 
not directors or CEO of the Company) is approximately $1,945,000. 

There are no termination, retirement and post-employment benefi ts granted to the directors, 
the CEO or the top fi ve key management personnel.

  Remuneration of immediate family members of director or the CEO 

During the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014, save for executive directors, there are no other 
employees who are immediate family members of a director or the CEO whose remuneration 
exceed $50,000.

3.  ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Principle 10: Accountability 

The Board provides shareholders with fi nancial statements for the fi rst three quarters and full 
fi nancial year within the timeframe in line with Rule 705 of the Listing Manual. In presenting the 
annual and quarterly fi nancial statements to shareholders, the Board aims to provide shareholders 
with a balanced and clear assessment of the Group’s performance, fi nancial position and prospects.

Management provides the Board with management accounts, operations review and related 
explanations and any other information as the Board may require together with the fi nancial 
statements on a quarterly basis. The Audit and Risk Management Committee reviews the fi nancial 
statements and reports to the Board for approval. The Board authorises the release of the results to 
the SGX-ST and the public via SGXNET. The quarterly and full year fi nancial results are also timely 
uploaded on the Group’s own website at www.stamfordland.com

The Board also provides negative assurance confi rmation to shareholders for the quarterly fi nancial 
statements in accordance with Rule 705(5) of the Listing Manual.
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Principle 11: Risk Management and Internal Controls 

Principle 12: Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”)

The ARMC comprises four Independent and Non-executive Directors, namely:

Lim Hwee Hua    Chairman 
Tan Chin Nam     Member 
Mark Anthony James Vaile  Member 
Douglas Owen Chester  Member

The Board is of the view that the ARMC members have adequate accounting or related fi nancial 
management expertise and accounting experience to discharge the ARMC’s functions. 

The ARMC meets at least four times a year and as and when deemed appropriate, to carry out 
its functions. 

The ARMC performs the functions as set out in the 2012 Code, inter alia: 

• Nominates the external auditors for appointment or re-appointment and reviews the level of audit 
fees, cost eff ectiveness of the audit and the independence and objectivity of the external auditors

• Reviews the audit plans and scope of work of the internal and external auditors

• Reviews the fi ndings of the internal and external auditors and the response from management

• Reviews the internal and external auditors’ evaluation of the adequacy of the Group’s system of 
accounting and internal controls

• Oversees management in the formulation, updating and maintenance of the Group’s Enterprise 
Risk Management (“ERM”) framework and policies

• Reviews risk reports on the Group and reviews and monitors management’s responses to 
the fi ndings

• Reviews any interested person transactions

• Reviews the Group’s quarterly and annual results announcements and the fi nancial statements of 
the Group and of the Company as well as the auditors’ report thereon before they are submitted 
to the Board for approval

• Reviews legal and regulatory matters that may have a material impact on the fi nancial statements

• Reports actions and minutes of the ARMC to the Board

The Board, supported by the ARMC, ensures that the Company has a robust risk management 
system to safeguard shareholders’ interests. The Group adopts an ERM framework which sets 
out the required environmental and organisational components for managing risk in an integrated, 
systematic and consistent manner. The ERM framework and related policies are reviewed at 
least annually.
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Internal and external auditors conduct audits that involve testing the eff ectiveness of the material 
internal controls in the Group addressing operational risk, compliance and legal risk, fi nancial risk, 
investment risk and information technology controls risk, including testing, where practical, material 
internal controls in areas managed by external service providers. Any material non-compliance 
or lapses in internal controls together with corrective measures recommended by internal and 
external auditors are reported to and reviewed by the ARMC. The adequacy and eff ectiveness of 
the measures taken by Management in response to the recommendations made by the internal and 
external auditors is also reviewed by the ARMC.

The Board has received assurances from the CEO and the CFO that:

(a)  the fi nancial records of the Group have been properly maintained and the fi nancial statements 
for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014 give a true and fair view of the Group’s operations 
and fi nances; and

(b)  the system of risk management and internal controls in place within the Group is adequate 
and eff ective in addressing the material risks faced by the Group in its current business 
environment including material operational risk, compliance and legal risk, fi nancial risk, 
investment risk and information technology controls risk. 

The CEO and the CFO have obtained similar assurances from the respective business and corporate 
executive heads in the Group.

In addition, in the year under review, the Board has also received quarterly certifi cation by 
Management on the integrity of fi nancial reporting and the Board has provided a negative assurance 
confi rmation to shareholders, as required by the Listing Manual of SGX-ST.

The Board notes that the system of risk management and internal controls established by the Group 
provides reasonable, but not absolute assurance that the Group will not be aff ected by any event 
that could be reasonably foreseen as it strives to achieve its business objectives. In this regard, 
the Board also notes that no system can provide absolute assurance against the occurrence of 
material error, poor judgment in decision-making, human error, fraud or other irregularities.

The ARMC is given full access to, and receives full cooperation from the Management. The ARMC 
has full discretion to invite any director or management staff  to attend its meetings. It is empowered 
to investigate any matters relating to the Group’s accounting, auditing, internal controls and/or 
fi nancial practices that are brought to its attention; and has full access to records, resources and 
personnel to enable it to discharge its functions properly and eff ectively.

Formal procedures are in place for the internal and external auditors to report their fi ndings and 
recommendations to the management and ARMC. The internal and external auditors also have 
unrestricted access to the ARMC. In addition, the ARMC also meets with the internal and external 
auditors separately, at least once a year, without the presence of the Management, in order to have 
free and unfi ltered access to information that it may require.
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The Group has in place the Whistle-Blower Policy and Procedures, pursuant to which staff  may, 
in confi dence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of fi nancial reporting or other 
matters. This helps to ensure that arrangements are in place for the independent investigation of 
such matters and for appropriate follow up action. All employees may address their report to the 
Whistle-Blower Panel (comprising the Head of Internal Audit, Director of Human Resources and the 
General Counsel) and/or the Chairman of the ARMC. Direct contact details of the Whistle-Blower 
Panel and the Chairman of the ARMC were made available to all staff . 

Dealings in Company’s Securities

The Group has complied with the best practices in dealings in securities, as set out under Rule 
1207(19) of the Listing Manual. In this regard, the Group has issued and implemented internal 
guidelines, to provide appropriate guidance to directors and staff  on dealings in the Company’s 
securities. All directors and staff  of the Group are not allowed to trade in the Company’s securities 
during the two weeks before the release of the Company’s fi rst three quarters’ results and during 
the one month before the release of the full year results. To facilitate compliance, quarterly reminders 
are issued to all directors and staff  prior to the applicable trading black-outs. Our directors and staff , 
who are expected to observe insider trading laws at all times, are also reminded not to deal in the 
Company’s securities on short-term considerations, or whilst in possession of unpublished material 
price-sensitive information.

External Auditors

Details of the aggregate amount of fees paid to the external auditors for the fi nancial year, are set 
out in note 11 of the Notes to the Financial Statements, found on Page 85 of the Annual Report.

There were no non-audit services provided by the external auditors during the fi nancial year ended 
31 March 2014.

The Group has complied with Rules 712 and 715 of the Listing Manual in relation to the appointment 
of external auditors for the Company and its subsidiaries. KPMG LLP has been engaged to audit 
the accounts of all companies within the Group, except for the dormant subsidiaries that are not 
required to be audited by the laws of the country of incorporation.

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/201440



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Principle 13: Internal Audit 

The Group is supported by a compliance and internal audit department. The Internal Auditor 
(the “IA”) reports to the Chairman of the ARMC on audit matters and to the COO on 
administrative matters. 

The IA plans the internal audit program which includes a review of the Group’s risks assessments 
and the eff ectiveness of the Group’s material internal controls to address the identifi ed risks, 
in consultation with, but independent of the Management. 

The ARMC is satisfi ed that the IA function is adequately resourced and has the appropriate standing 
within the Company to undertake its activities independently and objectively. 

The IA performs detailed work to assist the ARMC in the evaluation of the Group’s operational, 
compliance and legal, fi nancial, investment and information technology controls based on an internal 
audit plan approved by the ARMC. Any material non-compliance or weakness noted in internal 
controls, including recommendations for improvements, are reported to the ARMC. The ARMC also 
reviews the eff ectiveness of actions taken by Management in response to recommendations made 
by the IA. 

Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Group, work performed by the 
Internal and External Auditors, and reviews performed by Management, various Board Committees 
and the Board; the Board with the concurrence of the ARMC, is of the opinion that the internal 
controls in place are adequate in addressing the Group’s operational risk, compliance and legal 
risk, fi nancial risk, investment risk and information technology controls risk in its current business 
environment. 
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4.  COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

  Principle 14: Shareholder Rights

  Principle 15: Communication with Shareholders

  Principle 16: Conduct of Shareholder Meetings

The Company places great emphasis on regular, eff ective and open communication with our 
shareholders. The announcements of the Group’s results and material developments are released 
through SGXNET to the SGX’s website in a timely manner to ensure fair disclosure of information. 

All shareholders receive the annual report and the notices of shareholders’ meetings. The notices 
for such meetings are also advertised in a local newspaper and made available on SGXNET. 
Shareholders are given the opportunity to participate eff ectively and vote at general meetings of the 
Company, where relevant rules and procedures governing the meetings are clearly communicated. 
The chairpersons of the various board committees and the external auditors are invited to be present 
at our general meetings, to address any queries from our shareholders.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS (“IPT”)

The Company has established a procedure for recording and reporting interested person 
transactions. Details of signifi cant interested person transactions for the fi nancial year ended 
31 March 2014 are set out below:

Name of
interested person

Aggregate value of 
all IPT during the 

fi nancial year ended 
31 March 2014

(excluding transactions 
below S$100,000)

Aggregate value of all 
IPT conducted under 

shareholders mandate 
pursuant to Rule 920 

(excluding transactions 
below S$100,000)

(a)  Rental income from 
      related parties:

- Singapore Shipping Agencies 
Pte Ltd

- SSC Ship Management Pte Ltd

$234,000

$148,000

–

–

(b) Transactions entered into 
by the Group with directors of 
the Company:

      - purchase of goods and services $1,426,000 –

All the above IPT were concluded on normal commercial terms.

There were no other material contracts or loan entered into by the Company and its subsidiaries 
involving the interests of the CEO, directors or controlling shareholder, which are either subsisting 
at the end of the fi nancial year or, if not then subsisting, entered into since the end of the previous 
fi nancial year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors of the Company are pleased to present their report together with the audited fi nancial 
statements of the Company and of the Group for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014.

1  Directors at Date of Report

  The directors of the Company in offi  ce at the date of this report are:

Mr Ow Chio Kiat    (Executive Chairman)
Mr Ow Cheo Guan  (Executive Deputy Chairman)
Mr Ow Yew Heng 
Dr Tan Chin Nam
Mr Mark Anthony James Vaile
Mrs Lim Hwee Hua 
Mr Douglas Owen Chester  (Appointed on 25 July 2013)

2  Arrangements to Enable Directors to Acquire Benefi ts by Means of the Acquisition of 
 Shares and Debentures

Neither at the end of the fi nancial year nor at any time during the fi nancial year did there exist any 
arrangement whose object is to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefi ts by means 
of the acquisition of shares or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate. 

3  Directors’ Interests in Shares and Debentures

Except as disclosed below, the directors of the Company holding offi  ce at the end of the fi nancial 
year had no interests in the share capital and debentures/options of the Company and related 
corporations as recorded in the register of directors’ shareholdings kept by the Company under 
section 164 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50:

 Interest held in the  Deemed interest
 name of director at of director at
         1 April 2013 31 March 2014 1 April 2013 31 March 2014

 STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD   

Ordinary shares    
 Mr Ow Chio Kiat   300,216,000 300,216,000 22,342,000 22,342,000
 Mr Ow Cheo Guan   3,730,000 3,730,000 26,400,000 26,400,000
 Mr Ow Yew Heng   10,000,000 10,000,000 –  – 

By virtue of section 7 of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, Ow Chio Kiat with the above 
mentioned shareholding is deemed to have an interest in the Company and in all its subsidiaries. 

The directors’ interests as at 21 April 2014 were the same as those at the end of the year.

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/201444



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

4  Contractual Benefi ts of Directors

Since the beginning of the fi nancial year, except as disclosed in Notes 5 and 10 to the fi nancial 
statements, no director of the Company has received or become entitled to receive a benefi t which 
is required to be disclosed under section 201(8) of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50, by 
reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a fi rm 
of which he is a member, or with a company in which he has a substantial fi nancial interest. 

5  Options Exercised

During the fi nancial year, there were no shares of the Company or any subsidiaries in the Group 
issued by virtue of the exercise of an option to take up unissued shares.

6  Unissued Shares Under Option

  At the end of the fi nancial year, there were no unissued shares under option.

7  Audit and Risk Management Committee (“ARMC”)

  The members of the ARMC at the date of this report are as follows:

 Mrs Lim Hwee Hua   (Chairman)
 Dr Tan Chin Nam
 Mr Mark Anthony James Vaile
 Mr Douglas Owen Chester

The ARMC performs the functions specifi ed by section 201B(5) of the Companies Act, Chapter 50, 
the SGX listing manual and the Code of Corporate Governance. Among others, it performed the 
following functions:

• Reviewed with the independent external auditors their audit plan;
• Reviewed with the independent external auditors their evaluation of the Company’s internal 

accounting control, and their report on the fi nancial statements and the assistance given by 
the Company’s offi  cers to them;

• Reviewed with the internal auditors the scope and results of the internal audit procedures;
• Reviewed the fi nancial statements of the Group and the Company prior to their submission to 

the directors of the Company for adoption; and
• Reviewed the interested person transactions (as defi ned in Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual 

of SGX).

Other functions performed by the ARMC are described in the report on corporate governance 
included in the annual report. It also includes an explanation of how independent auditors’ objectivity 
and independence are safeguarded where the independent auditors provide non-audit services.

The ARMC has recommended to the board of directors that the independent external auditors, 
KPMG LLP, be nominated for re-appointment as independent auditors at the next annual general 
meeting of the Company.
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8  Internal Controls

Based on the internal controls established and maintained by the Group, work performed by 
the internal and external auditors, and reviews performed by management, various Board 
Committees and the Board, the ARMC and the Board are of the opinion that the Group’s 
internal controls, addressing fi nancial, operational and compliance risks, were adequate as 
at 31 March 2014.

9  Independent Auditors

  The independent auditors, KPMG LLP, have expressed their willingness to accept re-appointment.

10  Subsequent Developments

There are no signifi cant developments subsequent to the release of the Group’s and the 
Company’s fi nancial statements, as announced on 23 May 2014, which would materially aff ect 
the Group’s and the Company’s operating and fi nancial performance as of the date of this report.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Ow Chio Kiat     Ow Cheo Guan

Singapore
4 June 2014
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

In our opinion:

(a)   the fi nancial statements set out on pages 50 to 109 are drawn up so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of aff airs of the Group and of the Company as at 31 March 2014 and 
the results, changes in equity and cash fl ows of the Group for the year ended on that date in 
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 and Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards; and

(b)  at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be 
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these fi nancial statements 
for issue.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Ow Chio Kiat     Ow Cheo Guan

Singapore
4 June 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the accompanying fi nancial statements of Stamford Land Corporation Ltd (the “Company”) 
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which comprise the statements of fi nancial position of the Group and 
the Company as at 31 March 2014, the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash fl ows of the Group for the year then ended, 
and a summary of signifi cant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on 
pages 50 to 109.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of fi nancial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50 (“the Act”) and 
Singapore Financial Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintaining a system of internal accounting 
controls suffi  cient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded against loss from 
unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they are recorded 
as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair profi t and loss accounts and balance sheets and 
to maintain accountability of assets.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these fi nancial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the fi nancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the fi nancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fi nancial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company’s 
preparation of the fi nancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
eff ectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, 
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the fi nancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion.

Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD (Registration No : 197701615H)
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD (Registration No : 197701615H)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated fi nancial statements of the Group and the statement of fi nancial position 
of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Singapore 
Financial Reporting Standards to give a true and fair view of the state of aff airs of the Group and of 
the Company as at 31 March 2014 and the results, changes in equity and cash fl ows of the Group for 
the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Act to be kept by the Company and 
by those subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors, have been properly kept 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

KPMG LLP
Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore
4 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

 THE GROUP
           Note 2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

Revenue         6 278,727 266,742

Other Items of Income   
Interest Income       7 1,412 1,471
Dividend Income      8 210 131
Other Credits       9 409 13,364

Other Items of Expense   
Completed Properties Sold   22 (39,102) (17,142)
Raw Materials and Consumables Used    (23,493) (25,333)
Staff  Costs        10 (91,310) (99,206)
Depreciation Expense    16 (14,813) (16,852)
Other Operating Expenses   11 (60,700) (60,388)
Finance Costs       12 (15,212) (18,452)
Other Charges        9 (1,686) (1,885)
Profi t Before Tax       34,442 42,450
Income Tax Expense     13 (7,314) (10,754)
Profi t Attributable to Equity Holders 

of Parent, Net of Tax    27,128 31,696
   
Earnings Per Share     14  
- Basic          3.14 cents 3.67 cents
- Diluted           3.14 cents  3.67 cents

   

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

Year ended 31 March 2014 
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STATEMENT OF TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

Profi t for the Year      27,128 31,696

Other Comprehensive Income:    
Items that are or may be reclassifi ed subsequently 

to profi t or loss:    
(Losses)/Gains on Fair Value of 
 Available-for-Sale Investments    (37) 37
Exchange Diff erences on Consolidation 
 of Foreign Subsidiaries    (27,855) 1,653
Exchange Diff erences on Foreign Currency Loans Forming 
 Part of Net Investment in Foreign Operations   (2,418) (3,227)
Tax Eff ect on Other Comprehensive Income   –  – 
Total Comprehensive Income, Net of Income Tax, 
 Attributable to Shareholders    (3,182) 30,159

    

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

Year ended 31 March 2014
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
         Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS     
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 16 465,430 478,604 –  – 
Investment Properties  17 203,534 224,411 –  – 
Investments in Subsidiaries  18 –  –  376,513 374,217
Available-for-Sale Investments 20 347 384 347 384
Deferred Tax Assets   13 2,384 2,108 –  – 
Total Non-Current Assets   671,695 705,507 376,860 374,601
     
Current Assets
Amounts Due from Subsidiaries  19 –  –  14 29
Development Properties for Sale 21 42,527 7,481 –  – 
Completed Properties for Sale 22 71,238 112,631 –  – 
Inventories      23 1,719 1,946 –  – 
Trade and Other Receivables 24 13,029 15,475 6 85
Other Assets     25 7,012 2,755 –  – 
Investments Held-for-Trading 26 3,439 6,079 –  – 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 27 88,166 79,463 463 482
Total Current Assets   227,130 225,830 483 596
Total Assets      898,825 931,337 377,343 375,197

 As at 31 March 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 As at 31 March 2014

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
         Note 2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share Capital      28 144,556 144,556 144,556 144,556
Retained Earnings     326,875 325,662 40,937 61,055
Other Reserves      20,208 50,518 292 329
Total Equity       491,639 520,736 185,785 205,940
     
Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Bank Borrowings 29 132,413 29,924 –  – 
Amounts Due to Subsidiaries  30 –  –  171,547 149,709
Deferred Tax Liabilities  13 24,751 27,501 5,216 6,026
Total Non-Current Liabilities   157,164 57,425 176,763 155,735
     
Current Liabilities
Income Tax Payable    4,679 5,062 3,699 3,072
Current Portion of Long-Term 
 Bank Borrowings   29 211,136 314,341 –  – 
Amounts Due to Subsidiaries  30 –  –  6,163 6,859
Trade and Other Payables 31 34,207 33,773 4,933 3,591
Total Current Liabilities  250,022 353,176 14,795 13,522
Total Liabilities     407,186 410,601 191,558 169,257
Total Equity and Liabilities  898,825 931,337 377,343 375,197

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

           Foreign    
           currency
         Share Fair value translation Retained Total
THE GROUP    Note  capital reserve reserve earnings equity
         $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Previous Year:      
Opening Balance 
 at 31 March 2012   144,556 292 51,763 328,519 525,130
Total Comprehensive 
 Income for the Year      
Profi t for the Year   –  –  –  31,696 31,696
      
Other comprehensive income     
Gains on Fair Value of 
 Available-for-Sale Investments  –  37 –  –  37
Exchange Diff erences on 
 Consolidation of 
 Foreign Subsidiaries  –  –  1,653 –  1,653
Exchange Diff erences on Foreign 
 Currency Loans Forming Part 
 of Net Investment in 
 Foreign Operations  –  –  (3,227) –  (3,227)
Total other 
 comprehensive income  –  37 (1,574) –  (1,537)
Total comprehensive 
 income for the Year  –  37 (1,574) 31,696 30,159
      
Transactions with owners, 
 recognised directly in equity      
Contributions by and 
 distributions to owners      
Dividends      15 –  –  –  (34,553) (34,553)
Total transactions with owners  –  –  –  (34,553) (34,553)
Closing Balance at 31 March 2013  144,556 329 50,189 325,662 520,736

Year Ended 31 March 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

           Foreign    
           currency
         Share Fair value translation Retained Total
THE GROUP    Note  capital reserve reserve earnings equity
         $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Current Year:      
Opening Balance at 
 31 March 2013    144,556 329 50,189 325,662 520,736
Total Comprehensive 
 Income for the Year      
Profi t for the Year   –  –  –  27,128 27,128
      
Other comprehensive income      
Losses on Fair Value of 
 Available-for-Sale Investments  –  (37) –  –  (37)
Exchange Diff erences on 
 Consolidation of 
 Foreign Subsidiaries  –  –  (27,855) –  (27,855)
Exchange Diff erences on Foreign 
 Currency Loans Forming Part 
 of Net Investment in 
 Foreign Operations  –  –  (2,418) –  (2,418)
Total other 
 comprehensive income  –  (37) (30,273) –  (30,310)
Total comprehensive 
 income for the Year  –  (37) (30,273) 27,128 (3,182)
      
Transactions with owners, 
 recognised directly in equity      
Contributions by and 
 distributions to owners      
Dividends      15  –  –  –   (25,915) (25,915)
Total transactions with owners  –  –  –  (25,915) (25,915)
Closing Balance at 31 March 2014  144,556 292 19,916 326,875 491,639

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

Year Ended 31 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Profi t for the Year       27,128 31,696
Adjustments for:   
Income Tax Expense      7,314 10,754
Depreciation Expense of Property, Plant and Equipment   14,813 16,852
Dividend Income       (210) (131)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Losses/(Gains)   1,084 (188)
Gains on Fair Value of Investment Properties   (409) (12,810)
Interest Expense       15,212 18,452
Interest Income        (1,412) (1,471)
Losses/(Gains) on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  4 (8) 
Provision for Impairment on Completed Properties for Sale  –  1,741
Operating Profi t Before Working Capital Changes   63,524 64,887
Development Properties for Sale    (37,050) (1,212)
Completed Properties for Sale    39,102 18,142
Inventories         82 109
Investments Held-for-Trading    2,640 (1,358)
Trade and Other Receivables    (2,593) (288)
Trade and Other Payables    (643) (1,967)
Cash Generated from Operations    65,062 78,313
Income Taxes Paid      (8,148) (12,222)
Net Cash From Operating Activities    56,914 66,091
   

Year Ended 31 March 2014

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.
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Year Ended 31 March 2014

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these fi nancial statements.

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

Cash Flows From Investing Activities 
Proceeds from Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  34 12
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment   (38,947) (16,078)
Interest Received       1,413 1,507
Dividends Received      210 131
Deposits pledged       661 (839)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities    (36,629) (15,267)

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds from Borrowings    31,541 – 
Repayment of Borrowings    –  (6,310)
Interest Paid        (15,382) (18,789)
Dividends Paid to Equity Holders    (25,915) (34,553)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities    (9,756) (59,652)
   
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents   10,529 (8,828)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year   75,378 84,474
Eff ect of Foreign Exchange Rates Adjustment   (1,165) (268)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of the Year    84,742 75,378
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1   GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Singapore with limited liability. The fi nancial statements are presented 
in Singapore dollars, which is the functional currency of the Company. The fi nancial statements were 
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 4 June 2014.

The principal activities of the Group consist of investment holding, hotel owning and management, 
travel agency, trading and property investment and development.

The principal activity of the Company is that of an investment holding company. It is listed on the 
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited. Its registered offi  ce and principal place of business 
is at 200 Cantonment Road, #09-01 Southpoint, Singapore 089763. The Company is domiciled 
in Singapore.

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

  Statement of Compliance 

The fi nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial Reporting 
Standards (“FRS”) as well as all related Interpretations to FRS (“INT FRS”) as issued by the Singapore 
Accounting Standards Council and the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act, Chapter 50. 
The fi nancial statements are prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost basis 
except where any FRS requires another measurement basis (such as fair value of investment 
properties and fair value and/or amortised cost for fi nancial assets and liabilities) as disclosed where 
appropriate in the accounting policies set out below. 

  Changes and Adoption of New/Revised Financial Reporting Standards

With effect from 1 April 2013, the Group has adopted the new and revised FRS that have 
become eff ective.

Fair value measurement
FRS 113 establishes a single framework for measuring fair value and making disclosures about 
fair value measurements, when such measurements are required or permitted by other FRSs. In 
particular, it unifi es the defi nition of fair value as the price at which an orderly transaction to sell an 
asset or to transfer a liability would take place between market participants at the measurement 
date. It also replaces and expands the disclosure requirements about fair value measurements in 
other FRSs, including FRS 107 Financial Instruments: Disclosures.

From 1 April 2013, in accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 113, the Group has applied 
the new fair value measurement guidance prospectively, and had not provided any comparative 
information for new disclosures. Notwithstanding the above, the change had no signifi cant impact 
on the measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities. The additional disclosures necessary as 
a result of the adoption of this standard has been included in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

  Changes and Adoption of New/Revised Financial Reporting Standards (Cont’d)

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income
From 1 April 2013, as a result of the amendments to FRS 1, the Group has modifi ed the presentation 
of items of other comprehensive income in its statement of comprehensive income, to present 
separately items that would be reclassifi ed to profi t or loss in the future from those that would never 
be. Comparative information has also been re-presented accordingly.

The adoption of the amendments to FRS 1 has no impact on the recognised assets, liabilities and 
comprehensive income of the Group. 

  New Standards and Interpretations Not Adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are eff ective for fi nancial 
periods beginning after 1 April 2014, and have not been applied in preparing these fi nancial 
statements. None of these are expected to have a signifi cant eff ect on the fi nancial statements of 
the Group and the Company. Those new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations 
are set out below:

FRS 110 Consolidated Financial Statements introduces a new control model that is applicable to 
all investees, by focusing on whether the Group has power over an investee, exposure, or rights 
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and ability to use its power to aff ect those 
returns. In particular, FRS 110 requires the Group to consolidate investees that it controls on the 
basis of de facto circumstances.

FRS 111 Joint Arrangements establishes the principles for classifi cation and accounting of joint 
arrangements. The adoption of this standard would require the Group to re-assess and classify its 
joint arrangements as either joint operations or joint ventures based on its rights and obligations 
arising from the joint arrangements. Under this standard, interests in joint ventures will be accounted 
for using the equity method whilst interests in joint operations will be accounted for using the 
applicable FRSs relating to the underlying assets, liabilities, revenue and expense items arising 
from the joint operations. When making this assessment, the Group considers the structure of the 
arrangements, the legal form of any separate vehicles, the contractual terms of the arrangements 
and other facts and circumstances. Previously, the structure of the arrangement was the sole focus 
of classifi cation.

FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities brings together into a single standard all the 
disclosure requirements about an entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and 
unconsolidated structured entities. The Group is currently assessing the disclosure requirements for 
interests in subsidiaries in comparison with the existing disclosures. FRS 112 requires the disclosure 
of information about the nature, risks and fi nancial eff ects of these interests.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

New Standards and Interpretations Not Adopted (Cont’d)

Amendments to FRS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation – Off setting Financial Assets and 
Financial Liabilities clarifi es the existing criteria for net presentation on the face of the statement of 
fi nancial position. Under the amendments, to qualify for off setting, the right to set off  a fi nancial asset 
and a fi nancial liability must not be contingent on a future event and must be enforceable both in 
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and 
all counterparties.

The Group currently off sets receivables and payables due from/to the same counterparty if the Group 
has the legal right to set off  the amounts when it is due and payable based on the contractual terms 
of the arrangement with the counterparty, and the Group intends to settle the amounts on a net 
basis. Based on the local laws and regulations in certain jurisdictions in which the counterparties are 
located, the set-off  rights are set aside in the event of bankruptcy of the counterparties. On adoption 
of the amendments, the Group will have to present the respective receivables and payables on a 
gross basis as the right to set-off  is not enforceable in the event of bankruptcy of the counterparty.

The amendments will be applied retrospectively and prior periods in the Group’s 2015 fi nancial 
statements. As at 31 March 2014, if the amendments were eff ective, the Group’s and Company’s 
total assets and liabilities would not have been materially impacted.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidation accounting method is used for the consolidated fi nancial statements that include 
the fi nancial statements made up to the end of the reporting year of the Company and all of its 
directly and indirectly controlled subsidiaries. Consolidated fi nancial statements are the fi nancial 
statements of the Group presented as those of a single economic entity. The consolidated fi nancial 
statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events 
in similar circumstances. All signifi cant intragroup balances and transactions, including income, 
expenses and dividends, are eliminated in full on consolidation. The results of the investees acquired 
or disposed of during the fi nancial year are accounted for from the respective dates of acquisition or 
up to the dates of disposal which is the date on which eff ective control is obtained of the acquired 
business until that control ceases. On disposal, the attributable amount of goodwill previously 
capitalised, if any, is included in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal. 

Revenue

Revenue represents invoiced value of goods sold and services rendered, hotel and restaurant 
operations revenue, rental income and income from the sale of completed residential properties. 
The Group’s revenue excludes transactions within the Group. Revenue is measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account the amount of any trade discounts 
and volume rebates allowed by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Basis of Revenue Recognition

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when signifi cant risks and rewards of ownership 
are transferred to the buyer and the amount of revenue and the costs of the transaction can be 
measured reliably.

Income from the sale of completed residential properties is recognised using the settlement approach 
when the signifi cant risks and rewards have been transferred to the buyer. 

Income from the rendering of services associated with the hotel and restaurant operations is 
recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income is recognised on a time-proportion basis in accordance with the terms of the rental 
agreement from investment property.

Dividend income from subsidiaries and other equity securities are recognised in the accounting 
period in which the dividend is declared payable.

Interest income on interest-bearing instruments is recognised on a time-proportion basis, using the 
eff ective interest method. 

  Employee Benefi ts

Certain subsidiaries operate a defi ned contribution provident plan, in which employees are entitled 
to join upon fulfi lling certain conditions. The assets of the fund are held separately from those of 
the entity in an independently administered fund. The entity contributes an amount equal to a fi xed 
percentage of the salary of each participating employee. Contributions are charged to the income 
statement in the period to which they relate. For employee leave entitlement, the expected cost 
of short-term employee benefi ts in the form of compensated absences is recognised when the 
employees render service that increases their entitlement to compensated absences. A liability 
for bonuses is recognised where the entity is contractually obliged or where there is constructive 
obligation based on past practice.

  Income Tax

Income taxes are accounted using the asset and liability method that requires the recognition of 
taxes payable or refundable for the current year and deferred tax liabilities and assets for the future 
tax consequence of events that have been recognised in the fi nancial statements or tax returns. 
The measurement of current and deferred tax liabilities and assets is based on provisions of the 
enacted or substantially enacted tax laws; the eff ects of future changes in tax laws or rates are 
not anticipated. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred 
tax. Current and deferred income taxes are recognised in the income statement except that when 
they relate to items that initially bypass the income statement and are taken to equity, or in other
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Income Tax (Cont’d)

comprehensive income. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are off set when they relate to income taxes 
levied by the same income tax authority. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 
each end of the reporting year and is reduced, if necessary, by the amount of any tax benefi ts that, 
based on available evidence, are not expected to be realised. A deferred tax amount is recognised 
for all temporary diff erences, unless the deferred tax amount arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction which (i) is not a business combination; and (ii) at the time of 
the transaction, aff ects neither accounting profi t nor taxable profi t (tax loss). A deferred tax liability 
is not recognised for all taxable temporary diff erences associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
branches and interests in joint ventures because (a) the Group entities are able to control the timing 
of the reversal of the temporary diff erence; and (b) it is probable that the temporary diff erence will 
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Foreign Currencies

The functional currency of the Company is the Singapore dollar as it refl ects the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates. Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in the 
functional currency at the rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. At each end of the reporting 
year, recorded monetary balances and balances measured at fair value that are denominated in 
non-functional currencies are reported at the rates ruling at the reporting date and fair value date 
respectively. All realised and unrealised exchange adjustment gains and losses are dealt with in the 
income statement except when recognised directly in other comprehensive income as qualifying 
cash fl ow hedges. 

Translation of Financial Statements of Other Group Entities

Each entity in the Group determines the appropriate functional currency as it refl ects the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates. The functional currencies of the Group entities 
are Singapore dollar, Australian dollar and New Zealand dollar. In translating the fi nancial statements 
of an investee for incorporation in the consolidated fi nancial statements, the assets and liabilities 
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the Company are translated at 
year end rates of exchange and the income and expense items are translated at average rates of 
exchange for the year. The components of shareholders’ equity are stated at historical rates. The 
resulting translation adjustments are recognised in other comprehensive income and are accumulated 
in a translation reserve as a separate component of equity until the disposal of that investee. 
On disposal, the accumulated translation adjustment is transferred to the income statement to arrive 
at the gain or loss on disposal of the investee. 

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither 
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from 
such a monetary item that are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation are 
recognised in other comprehensive income, and are presented in the foreign currency translation 
reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

  Borrowing Costs

All borrowing costs that are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of 
funds that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset 
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale are 
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare 
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are completed. Other borrowing costs are recognised 
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. The interest expense is calculated using the 
eff ective interest rate method.

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any 
accumulated impairment loss.

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the diff erence between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount 
of the item and is recognised in the income statement. 

Depreciation is charged so as to write off  the cost of assets less their residual values, other than 
freehold land and capital work-in-progress, over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line 
method, as follows:

Freehold buildings  – 100 years
Leasehold land and buildings –  terms of the leases ranging from 52 to 71 years
Renovations, furniture and fi ttings –  2 to 25 years
Motor vehicles   –  5 to 7 years
Equipment and computers –  2 to 15 years 

  No depreciation is provided on freehold land and capital work-in-progress.

The residual value and the useful life of an item of property, plant and equipment is reviewed at least 
at each fi nancial year-end and, if expectations are signifi cantly diff erent from previous estimates, the 
changes are accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate, and the depreciation charge for 
the current and future periods are adjusted. Fully depreciated assets still in use are retained in the 
fi nancial statements.

Cost also includes acquisition cost, any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location 
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 
Subsequent cost is recognised as an asset only when it is probable that future economic benefi ts 
associated with the item will fl ow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement when they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

  Investment Property

Investment property is property owned or held under a fi nance lease to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or both, rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for 
administrative purposes or sale in the ordinary course of business. After initial recognition at cost, 
including transaction costs, the fair value model is used to measure the investment property. The fair 
value is determined based on internal valuation or independent professional valuation. Independent 
professional valuation is obtained at least once every three years.

Any increase or decrease on revaluation is credited or charged to the income statement as a net 
change in fair value of the investment properties.

Subsequent expenditure relating to investment properties that has already been recognised is added 
to the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefi ts, in excess of 
originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset, will fl ow to the Group. All other 
subsequent expenditure is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

When an investment property is disposed of, the resulting gain or loss recognised is the diff erence 
between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property.

Investment properties are not depreciated. The properties are subject to continual maintenance and 
regular revaluation on the basis set out above.

  Properties under Development

Properties under development are properties being developed for sale or future use as 
investment properties.

Development properties for sale are recognised at cost including cost of acquisition, cost of land, 
other direct and related development expenditure, and borrowing costs incurred in developing the 
properties. Borrowing costs payable on loans funding a property under development are capitalised, 
on a specifi c identifi cation basis, as part of the cost of the property under development until the 
completion of development. Completed properties are transferred and accounted for as completed 
properties for sale.

Properties under development for future use as investment properties are initially recognised at 
cost and subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised in the income statement. 
Completed properties are transferred and accounted for as investment properties. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity including unincorporated and special purpose entity that is controlled by 
the Group. Control is the power to govern the fi nancial and operating policies of an entity so as to 
obtain benefi ts from its activities accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the voting 
rights or the ability to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the board of directors or to 
cast the majority of votes at meetings of the board of directors. The existence and eff ect of potential 
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether 
the Group controls another entity. 

In the Company’s own separate fi nancial statements, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at 
cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Impairment loss recognised in the income statement 
for a subsidiary is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The net book values 
of the subsidiaries are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that would be realised in a current 
market exchange.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, an annual impairment test is performed 
at the same time every year on an intangible asset with an indefi nite useful life or an intangible 
asset not yet available for use. The carrying amount of other non-fi nancial assets is reviewed at 
each reporting date for indications of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is written 
down through the income statement to its estimated recoverable amount. The impairment loss is 
the excess of the carrying amount over the recoverable amount and is recognised in the income 
statement unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment 
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease and dealt with through other comprehensive income. The 
recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to 
sell and its value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash fl ows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refl ects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specifi c to the asset. For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifi able cash fl ows (cash-
generating units). At each reporting date, non-fi nancial assets, other than goodwill with impairment 
loss recognised in prior periods, are assessed for possible reversal of the impairment. An impairment 
loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss 
had been recognised. The reversal is recognised through the income statement. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement and derecognition of fi nancial assets:

A fi nancial asset is recognised on the statement of fi nancial position only when the entity becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition of fi nancial assets is at 
fair value normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for fi nancial asset not 
classifi ed at fair value through profi t or loss includes the transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of the fi nancial asset. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or 
issue of fi nancial assets classifi ed at fair value through profi t or loss are expensed immediately. 
The transactions are recorded at the trade date.

Irrespective of the legal form of the transactions performed, fi nancial assets are derecognised when 
they pass the “substance over form” based derecognition test prescribed by FRS 39 relating to the 
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer of control. 

Subsequent measurement:

Subsequent measurement based on the classifi cation of the fi nancial assets in one of the following 
four categories under FRS 39 is as follows:

a.  Financial assets at fair value through profi t or loss: Assets are classifi ed in this category when 
they are incurred principally for the purpose of trading in the near term (trading assets) or are 
derivatives (except for a derivative that is a designated and eff ective hedging instrument) or 
have been classifi ed in this category because the conditions are met to use the “fair value 
option” and it is used. These assets are carried at fair value by reference to the transaction 
price or current bid prices in an active market. All changes in fair value relating to assets at fair 
value through profi t or loss are recognised directly in the income statement. They are classifi ed 
as non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 
12 months of the end of the reporting year. Typically, short-term investments in equity and 
debt securities are classifi ed in this category.

b.  Loans and receivables: Loans and receivables are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed 
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Assets that are for sale 
immediately or in the near term are not classifi ed in this category. These assets are carried at 
amortised cost using the eff ective interest method (except that short-duration receivables with 
no stated interest rate are normally measured at original invoice amount unless the eff ect of 
imputing interest would be signifi cant) minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an 
allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility. Impairment charges are provided only 
when there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred as a result of one 
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that 
loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash fl ows of the fi nancial asset 
or group of fi nancial assets that can be reliably estimated. The methodology ensures that an 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

Financial Assets (Cont’d)

  impairment loss is not recognised on the initial recognition of an asset. Losses expected as a 
  result of future events, no matter how likely, are not recognised. For impairment, the carrying

amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss 
is recognised in the income statement. An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal can be 
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised; and the 
reversal is recognised in the income statement. Typically, the trade and other receivables are 
classifi ed in this category. 

c.  Held-to-maturity fi nancial assets: These are non-derivative fi nancial assets with fi xed or 
determinable payments and fi xed maturity that the entity has the positive intention and ability 
to hold to maturity. Long-term investments in bonds and debt securities are classifi ed in 
this category.

d.  Available-for-sale fi nancial assets: These are non-derivative fi nancial assets that are designated 
as available-for-sale on initial recognition or are not classifi ed in one of the previous categories. 
These assets are carried at fair value by reference to the transaction price or current bid 
prices in an active market. If such market prices are not reliably determinable, management 
establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. Changes in fair value of available-for-
sale fi nancial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and transferred to equity 
in other reserves. Such reserves are reclassifi ed to the income statement when realised 
through disposal. Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. When there is 
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognised 
in other comprehensive income and transferred to equity is reclassifi ed from equity to the 
income statement as a reclassifi cation adjustment. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value 
of an equity instrument classifi ed as available-for-sale increases, it is reversed through other 
comprehensive income. However, for debt instruments classifi ed as available-for-sale, 
impairment losses recognised in the income statement are subsequently reversed through 
the income statement if an increase in the fair value of the instrument can be objectively 
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss. They are classifi ed 
as non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 
12 months of the end of the reporting year. Typically, long-term investments in equity shares 
and debt securities are classifi ed in this category but do not include subsidiaries, joint 
ventures, or associates. 

  Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank and cash balances, on demand deposits and any 
highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less. For the 
statement of cash fl ows, the item includes cash and cash equivalents less cash subject to 
restriction and bank overdrafts payable on demand that form an integral part of cash management. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedging Activities

The Group holds derivative fi nancial instruments to manage exposures to foreign exchange and 
interest rate risks arising from operational, fi nancing and investment activities. These derivative 
fi nancial instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting and as such, they are accounted for as 
economic hedges.

Derivative fi nancial instruments are recognised initially at fair value and the attributable transaction 
costs are recognised in the income statement as incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, derivative 
fi nancial instruments are measured at fair value, and changes therein are recognised immediately in 
the income statement.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement:

A fi nancial liability is recognised on the statement of fi nancial position only when the entity becomes 
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The initial recognition of fi nancial liability at fair 
value is normally represented by the transaction price. The transaction price for fi nancial liability not 
classifi ed at fair value through profi t or loss includes the transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of the fi nancial liability. Transaction costs incurred on the acquisition or 
issue of fi nancial liability classifi ed at fair value through profi t or loss are expensed immediately. 
The transactions are recorded at the trade date. Financial liabilities including bank and other 
borrowings are classifi ed as current liabilities unless there is an unconditional right to defer settlement 
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting year. 

Subsequent measurement:

The Group designates its fi nancial liabilities at amortised cost. On subsequent measurement, these 
liabilities are carried at amortised cost using the eff ective interest method. Trade and other payables 
and borrowings are classifi ed in this category. Items classifi ed within current trade and other payables 
are not usually re-measured, as the obligation is usually known with a high degree of certainty and 
settlement is short-term. 

  Financial Guarantees

A fi nancial guarantee contract requires that the issuer makes specifi ed payments to reimburse the 
holder for a loss when a specifi ed debtor fails to make payment when due. Financial guarantee 
contracts are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at the greater of (a) the 
amount determined in accordance with FRS 37 and (b) the amount initially recognised less, where 
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with FRS 18. 
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2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of current fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities approximate their fair values 
due to the short-term maturity of these instruments. Disclosures of fair value are not made 
when the carrying amount of current fi nancial instruments is a reasonable approximation of fair 
value. The maximum exposure to credit risk is the fair value of the fi nancial instruments at the 
end of the reporting year. The fair value of a fi nancial instrument is derived from an active market. 
The appropriate quoted market price for an asset held or liability to be issued is usually the current 
bid price without any deduction for transaction costs that may be incurred on sale or other 
disposal and, for an asset to be acquired or liability held, the asking price. If there is no market, 
or the markets available are not active, the fair value is established by using a valuation technique. 
Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length market transactions between knowledgeable, 
willing parties, if available, reference to the current fair value of similar instruments and incorporates 
all factors that market participants would consider in setting a price and is consistent with accepted 
economic methodologies for pricing fi nancial instruments. As far as unquoted equity instruments 
are concerned, in cases where it is not possible to reliably measure the fair value, such instruments 
are carried at cost less accumulated allowance for impairment. Any impairment loss recorded is not 
subsequently reversed. 

Completed Properties for Sale 

Completed properties held for sale are those which are intended for sale in the ordinary course of 
business. They are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value. Cost includes 
cost of acquisition, cost of land and other direct and related development expenditure, including 
borrowing costs, incurred in developing the properties. Borrowing costs payable on loans funding 
a property under development are also capitalised, on a specifi c identifi cation basis, as part of the 
cost of the property under development until the completion of development. Net realisable value 
represents the estimated selling price less costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Non-Current Assets Classifi ed as Held for Sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, that are expected to be 
recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use, are classifi ed as held for sale. 
Immediately before classifi cation as held for sale, the assets, or components of a disposal group, are 
re-measured in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. Thereafter generally the assets, 
or disposal group, are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is fi rstly allocated to goodwill, and then to remaining 
assets and liabilities on pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated to inventories, fi nancial 
assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefi t assets and investment property, which continue 
to be measured in accordance with the Group’s accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial 
classifi cation as held for sale and subsequent gains or losses on re-measurement are recognised 
in the income statement. Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss.
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2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

  Inventories

Inventories represent consumables valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method and includes the cost of purchase and 
other costs in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realisable value 
represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs to be incurred 
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. A write down on cost is made for 
where the cost is not recoverable or if the selling prices have declined.

  Equity

Equity instruments are contracts that give a residual interest in the net assets of the Company. 
Ordinary shares are classifi ed as equity. Equity instruments are recognised at the amount of proceeds 
received net of incremental costs directly attributable to the transaction. Dividends on equity are 
recognised as liabilities when they are declared. Interim dividends are recognised when paid. 
Where the Company reacquires its own equity instruments as treasury shares, the consideration 
paid, including any directly attributable incremental cost is deducted from equity attributable to 
the Company’s equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such 
shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly attributable 
incremental transaction costs and the related income tax eff ects, is included in equity attributable to 
the Company’s equity holders and no gain or loss is recognised in the income statement.

Provisions

A liability or provision is recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outfl ow of resources embodying economic benefi ts 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. Provisions are made using best estimates of the amount required in settlement and 
where the eff ect of the time value of money is material, the amount recognised is the present value 
of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that refl ects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specifi c to the obligation. 
The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense. Changes in 
estimates are refl ected in the income statement in the period they occur.

Operating Segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which 
it may earn revenue and incur expenses, including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions 
with any of the Group’s other components. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent 
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating 
decision maker has been identifi ed as the executive directors and key executives that make strategic 
resources allocation decisions. 

A geographical segment is a distinguishable component that is engaged in providing products or 
services within a particular economic environment and that is subject to risks and returns that are 
diff erent from those of components operating in other economic environments. 
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2   SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D) 

  Lease Payments

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profi t or loss on a straight-line basis over 
the term of the lease. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the total lease 
expense, over the term of the lease.

Minimum lease payments made under fi nance leases are apportioned between the fi nance expense 
and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The fi nance expense is allocated to each period 
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance 
of the liability.

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the 
remaining term of the lease when the lease adjustment is confi rmed.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease
At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an arrangement is or contains 
a lease. This will be the case if the following two criteria are met:

• the fulfi lment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that specifi c asset or assets; and

• the arrangement contains a right to use the asset(s).

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Group separates payments and 
other consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for other 
elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Group concludes for a fi nance lease that it 
is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a liability are recognised at 
an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently, the liability is reduced as 
payments are made and an imputed fi nance charge on the liability is recognised using the Group’s 
incremental borrowing rate.

3  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

The preparation of the fi nancial statements in conformity with FRSs requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that aff ect the application of accounting policies and 
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may diff er from 
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future 
periods aff ected.
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3  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (CONT’D)

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a signifi cant risk of resulting 
in a material adjustment within the next fi nancial year are as follows:

Allowance for doubtful accounts: 

An allowance is made for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the subsequent 
inability of the customers to make required payments. If the fi nancial conditions of the customers were 
to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional allowances may 
be required in future periods. Management specifi cally analyses accounts receivables and analyses 
historical bad debt, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends 
and changes in customer payment terms when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for 
doubtful accounts. At the end of reporting period, the receivables are measured at fair value and 
their fair values might change materially within the next fi nancial year but these changes would not 
arise from assumptions or other sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date. 

Net realisable value of inventories: 

A review is made periodically for excess inventories, inventory obsolescence and decline in net 
realisable value below cost and an allowance is recorded against the inventory balance for any such 
decline. These reviews require management to estimate future demand for the products. In any case, 
the realisable value represents the best estimate of the recoverable amount and is based on the 
most reliable evidence available at the reporting date and inherently involves estimates regarding the 
future expected realisable value. The benchmarks for determining the amount of allowance or write-
down include ageing analysis, technical assessment and review of selling price and costs directly 
relating to events occurring after the end of the fi nancial year to the extent that such events confi rm 
conditions existing at the end of the fi nancial year. In general, such an evaluation process requires 
signifi cant judgement and materially aff ects the carrying amount of inventories at the reporting date. 
Possible changes in these estimates could result in revision to the carrying value of inventory. 

Income tax:  

The entity recognises expected liabilities for tax based on an estimation of the likely taxes due, which 
requires signifi cant judgement as to the ultimate tax determination of certain items. Where the actual 
liability arising from these issues diff ers from these estimates, such diff erences will have an impact on 
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period when such determination is made. 

Deferred tax estimation:  

Management judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes, deferred tax 
assets and liabilities and the extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised and measured. 
A deferred tax asset is recognised if it is probable that suffi  cient taxable income will be available in the 
future against which the temporary diff erences and unused tax losses can be utilised. Management 
also considers future taxable income and tax planning strategies in assessing whether deferred 
tax assets should be recognised in order to refl ect changed circumstances as well as tax 
regulations. As a result, due to their inherent nature, it is likely that deferred tax calculation relates to 
complex fact patterns for which assessments of likelihood are judgemental and not susceptible to 
precise determination. 
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3  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (CONT’D)

Impairment of completed properties for sale:

Management makes allowance for foreseeable losses taking into account the Group’s recent 
experience in estimating net realisable values of completed units by reference to comparable 
properties, timing of sale launches, location of property and expected net selling prices. 
Market conditions may, however, change which may aff ect the future selling prices on the remaining 
unsold residential units of the completed properties and accordingly, further impairment loss may be 
required or reversed in future periods.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment:  

The estimates for the useful lives and related depreciation charges for property, plant and equipment 
are based on commercial and production factors which could change signifi cantly as a result of 
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to market conditions. The depreciation 
charge is increased where useful lives are less than previously estimated, or the carrying amounts 
written off  or written down for technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been 
abandoned or sold. It is reasonably possible, based on existing knowledge, that outcomes within 
the next fi nancial year that are diff erent from assumptions could require a signifi cant adjustment to 
the carrying amount of the balance aff ected. 

Impairment of property, plant and equipment:

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and equipment have any indication of 
impairment in accordance with the accounting policy. If indication exists, the recoverable amounts 
of property, plant and equipment are determined based on higher of fair value less costs to sell 
or value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates. 
The higher of fair value less costs to sell or estimates, judgements and assumptions are assessed 
on an on-going basis and are based on experience and relevant factors, including expectations of 
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries:

When a subsidiary is in net equity defi cit or has suff ered operating losses or has other known 
impairment indicators, a test is made whether the investment in the investee has suff ered any 
impairment, in accordance with the stated accounting policy. This determination requires signifi cant 
judgement. An estimate is made of the future profi tability of the investee, and the fi nancial health 
of and near-term business outlook for the investee, including factors such as industry and sector 
performance, and operational and fi nancing cash fl ow. It is reasonably possible based on existing 
knowledge, that outcomes within the next fi nancial year that are diff erent from assumptions could 
require a signifi cant adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset aff ected. 
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3  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES (CONT’D)

  Fair value determination of investment properties:

The fair values of investment properties are estimated based on valuations carried out by external 
property valuers, having appropriate recognised professional qualifi cations and recent experience 
in the location and category of property being valued. The valuations refl ect when appropriate, 
comparable sales of similar properties or estimated market values based on projection of income 
and expense streams over period of leases, using market rates of return.

4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS 

4A  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

The main purpose for holding or issuing fi nancial instruments is to raise and manage the capital 
requirements for the Group’s operating, investing and fi nancing activities. The main risks arising from 
the Group’s fi nancial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risks comprising interest 
rate, foreign currency and price risks. 

The management of fi nancial risks are as follows:

1. Minimise interest rate, currency, credit and market risk for all kinds of transactions.

2. Maximise the use of “natural hedge”: favouring as much as possible the natural off -setting of 
sales and costs and payables and receivables denominated in the same currency and therefore 
put in place hedging strategies only for the excess balance. The same strategy is pursued with 
regard to interest rate risk. 

3. Enter into derivatives or any other similar instruments solely for hedging purposes.

4. All fi nancial risk management activities are carried out and monitored by senior management staff .

5. All fi nancial risk management activities are carried out following good market practices.

(a)  Foreign currency risk

 The Group has exposure to changes in foreign exchange rates arising from foreign currency 
transactions and balances and changes in fair values of debt securities. These exposures 
and changes in fair values from time to time are monitored and any gains and losses are 
included in the income statement unless otherwise stated in the accounting policies. 
The Group holds derivative fi nancial instruments to manage exposures to foreign exchange 
risk. These derivative fi nancial instruments serve as economic hedges and do not qualify for 
hedge accounting.

 The Group has signifi cant investments in subsidiaries in Australia and New Zealand and is 
exposed to currency translation risk. 

 Information relating to the Group’s balances in foreign currencies is disclosed in Notes 27 and 
29 to the fi nancial statements.
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT’D)

4A  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(a)  Foreign currency risk (Cont’d)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis uses 5% increase and decrease in the Singapore dollar against 
the relevant functional currencies of foreign subsidiaries as an approximate of the sensitivity 
rate. Based on the sensitivity analysis performed, a 5% appreciation/depreciation in the 
Singapore dollar against the relevant foreign currencies is expected to increase/decrease 
profi t before tax of the Group by $37,000 (2013: $10,000). 

Management is of the view that the above sensitivity analysis may not be representative of the 
inherent foreign exchange risk as year-end exposures may not refl ect the actual exposure and 
circumstances during the year.

(b)  Interest rate risk

The Group obtains additional fi nancing through bank borrowings. There is exposure to interest 
rate price risk for fi nancial instruments with a fi xed interest rate and to interest rate or cash 
fl ow risk for fi nancial instruments with a fl oating interest rate that is reset as market rates 
change. The Group’s policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available and 
at the same time managing its foreign currency exposure.

Surplus funds are placed with banks with acceptable ratings.

The following table analyses the breakdown of the fi nancial assets and liabilities by types 
of interest rate:

 THE GROUP THE COMPANY
      2014  2013  2014  2013
      $’000 $’000  $’000  $’000

Financial assets:    
Fixed rate   –  2,637 –  – 
Floating rate   83,817 74,905 195 146

    Non-interest bearing  21,164 23,859 635 834
    At end of year  104,981 101,401 830 980

    
Financial liabilities:    
Fixed rate   –  –  171,547 149,709
Floating rate   343,549 344,265 –  – 

    Non-interest bearing  34,207 33,773 11,096 10,450
    At end of year  377,756 378,038 182,643 160,159

Information relating to the Group’s interest rates is disclosed in Notes 27 and 29 to the 
fi nancial statements. 
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT’D)

4A  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(b)  Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis uses 50 basis points increase and decrease in the interest rates. Based 
on the sensitivity analysis performed, a 50 basis points increase/decrease in the interest 
rates would decrease/increase the Group’s profi t before tax by approximately $1.3 million 
(2013: $1.3 million).

In management’s opinion, the above eff ective interest rates are unrepresentative of the inherent 
interest rate risk as the historical exposure does not necessarily refl ect the exposure in future.

(c)  Liquidity risk

The Group’s funding is primarily handled by the Company on the basis of the subsidiaries’ 
investing and operational liquidity requirements. The subsidiaries’ excess liquidity is equalised 
internally through inter-company accounts.

The Group’s liquidity reserves consist of bank deposits as well as committed and uncommitted 
credit facilities with major fi nancial institutions. To some extent, liquid funds are in some periods 
placed in money market instruments or bonds.

The following table shows the contractual undiscounted cash fl ows of the Group and the 
Company’s fi nancial liabilities on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturities. 
The cash (infl ows)/outfl ows disclosed for derivative fi nancial instruments relate to those 
instruments held for risk management purposes and which are usually not closed out prior 
to contractual maturity. The disclosure shows gross cash infl ow and outfl ow amounts as the 
derivatives have simultaneous gross cash settlement.

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/201476



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT’D)

4A  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

(c)  Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

       Contractual cash fl ows
      Carrying  Not later  Between 1
THE GROUP   amount Total than 1 year and 5 years
      $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

2014    
Bank borrowings  344,504 363,299 223,345 139,954
Trade and other payables *  32,651 32,651 32,651 – 
      377,155 395,950 255,996 139,954
Derivative liabilities (gross-settled) 601 –  –  – 
- Outfl ow    –  22,080 22,080 – 
- (Infl ow)   –  (21,479) (21,479) – 
      377,756 396,551 256,597 139,954
2013    
Bank borrowings  345,390 356,582 323,779 32,803
Trade and other payables *  32,648 32,648 32,648 – 
      378,038 389,230 356,427 32,803

* Amounts exclude accrued loan interest payable of $955,000 (2013: $1,125,000) which has been 
reclassifi ed to bank borrowings, and derivative liabilities (shown separately) for the purpose of 
disclosing contractual cash fl ows.
       Contractual cash fl ows
     Carrying  Not later  Between 1  More than
THE COMPANY amount Total than 1 year and 5 years  5 years
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000  $’000

2014     
Trade and
 other payables*  2,535 2,535 2,535 –  – 
Amounts due 
 to subsidiaries 177,710 230,072 6,163 152,929 70,980
Financial guarantees 
 in favour of subsidiaries 2,398 343,952 343,952 –  – 
     182,643 576,559 352,650 152,929 70,980 
2013     
Trade and
 other payables * 2,478 2,478 2,478 –  – 
Amounts due 
 to subsidiaries 156,568 208,503 6,859 114,093 87,551
Financial guarantees 
 in favour of subsidiaries 1,113 344,694 344,694 –  – 
     160,159 555,675 354,031 114,093 87,551

* Amounts exclude fi nancial guarantees in favour of subsidiaries of $2,398,000 (2013: $1,113,000) 
for the purpose of disclosing contractual cash fl ows.
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT’D)

4A  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

(c)  Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

It is expected that all the liabilities will be paid at their contractual maturity except for bank 
borrowings which will be re-fi nanced. In order to meet such cash commitments, the operating 
activities are expected to generate suffi  cient cash infl ows. In addition, the fi nancial assets are 
held for which there is a liquid market and that are readily available to meet liquidity needs. The 
future cash fl ows on derivative instruments may be diff erent from the amounts in the above 
table as exchange rates change. Except for derivative liabilities and cash fl ows arising from the 
intra-group fi nancial guarantees, it is not expected that the cash fl ows included in the maturity 
analysis above could occur at signifi cantly diff erent amounts.

(d)  Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, debt securities, trade receivables 
and other receivables represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to 
fi nancial assets. 

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an 
ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit.

The Group has no signifi cant concentration of credit risk, as the exposure is spread over a 
large number of counterparties and customers.

Information relating to the Group’s credit risk exposure is disclosed in Notes 24 and 27 to the 
fi nancial statements.

Financial Guarantees in favour of Subsidiaries 

The Group’s policy is to provide fi nancial guarantees only to wholly-owned subsidiaries.

The maximum exposure of the Company in respect of the intra-group fi nancial guarantee 
at the end of the reporting period is if the facility is drawn down by the subsidiary in the 
amount of $343,952,000 (2013: $344,694,000). The fair value of the fi nancial guarantees is 
included in investments in subsidiaries (Note 18). At the reporting date, the Company does 
not consider it probable that a claim will be made against the Company under intra-group 
fi nancial guarantee.
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT’D)

4A  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D) 

(e)  Price risk

There are arrangements to invest temporary excess liquidity in equity or debt securities. 
Investments in derivatives for speculative purposes are not considered. As at end of the year, 
the quoted equity securities were held either as investments held-for-trading at fair value 
through profi t or loss or available-for-sale investment. As a result, such investments are 
exposed to both currency risk and changes in fair value risk.

No sensitivity analysis was performed as management is of the view that the eff ect on profi t 
before tax is not signifi cant. 

4B  CARRYING AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Estimation of fair values of fi nancial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of fi nancial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than one year (including 
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents, and trade and other payables) are assumed 
to approximate their fair values because of the short period to maturity. The fair values of the bank 
borrowings approximate their carrying values as they are repriced every one to three months. 
Information about estimating fair values of other fi nancial assets and liabilities are included in the 
following notes:

Note 20 – available-for-sale investments

Note 26 – investments held-for-trading

Note 31 – derivative liabilities

Note 31 – fi nancial guarantees in favour of subsidiaries
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT’D)

4B  CARRYING AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D) 

Accounting classifi cations and fair values

Fair value versus carrying amounts

The fair values of fi nancial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the 
statement of fi nancial position, are as follows:      
       Other   
       fi nancial
    Fair value    liabilities
    through  Loans Available within the Total
    profi t or  and -for-  scope of carrying
THE GROUP Note loss  receivables  sale  FRS 39 amount  Fair value
    $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2014       
Cash and cash 
 equivalents 27 –  88,166 –  –  88,166 88,166
Trade and other 
 receivables 24 –  13,029 –  –  13,029 13,029
Available-for-sale 
 equity securities 20 –  –  347 –  347 347
Held-for-trading
 equity securities 26 3,439 –  –  –  3,439 3,439
    3,439 101,195 347 –  104,981 104,981
Secured bank 
 borrowings 29 –  –  –  343,549 343,549 343,549
Trade and 
 other payables 31 –  –  –  33,606 33,606 33,606
Derivative liabilities 31 601  –  –  –  601 601
    601 –  –  377,155 377,756 377,756

2013       
Cash and cash 
 equivalents 27 –  79,463 –  –  79,463 79,463
Trade and other 
 receivables 24 –  15,475 –  –  15,475 15,475
Available-for-sale 
 equity securities 20 –  –  384 –  384 384
Held-for-trading 
 debt securities 26 2,637 –  –  –  2,637 2,637
Held-for-trading
 equity securities 26 3,442 –  –  –  3,442 3,442
    6,079 94,938 384 –  101,401 101,401
Secured bank
 borrowings 29 –  –  –  344,265 344,265 344,265
Trade and other 
 payables 31 –  –  –  33,773 33,773 33,773
    –  –  –  378,038 378,038 378,038
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4  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS: INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL RISKS (CONT’D)

4B  CARRYING AMOUNT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (CONT’D)

Accounting classifi cations and fair values (Cont’d)

Fair value versus carrying amounts (Cont’d)

       Other   
       fi nancial
        liabilities
     Loans Available within the Total
      and -for-  scope of carrying
THE COMPANY  Note receivables  sale  FRS 39 amount  Fair value
     $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2014      
Cash and cash equivalents  27 463 –  –  463 463
Trade and other receivables  24 6 –  –  6 6
Available-for-sale
 equity securities  20 –  347 –  347 347
     469 347 –  816 816

Trade and other payables  31 –  –  2,535 2,535 2,535
Financial guarantees in favour 
 of subsidiaries  31 –  –  2,398 2,398 3,701
     –  –  4,933 4,933 6,236

2013      
Cash and cash equivalents  27 482 –  –  482 482
Trade and other receivables  24 85 –  –  85 85
Available-for-sale 
 equity securities  20 –  384 –  384 384
     567 384 –  951 951

Trade and other payables  31 –  –  2,478 2,478 2,478
Financial guarantees in favour 
 of subsidiaries  31 –  –  1,113 1,113 1,923
     –  –  3,591 3,591 4,401

5  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FRS 24 defi nes a related party as an entity or person that directly or indirectly through one or 
more intermediaries controls, is controlled by, or is under common or joint control with, the Group 
in governing the fi nancial and operating policies, or that has an interest in the Group that gives it 
signifi cant infl uence over the Group in fi nancial and operating decisions. It also includes members of 
the key management personnel or close members of the family of any individual referred to herein 
and others who have the ability to control, jointly control or signifi cantly infl uence by or for which 
signifi cant voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any such individual.
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5  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(a)  Related companies:

  Intragroup transactions and balances that have been eliminated in these consolidated fi nancial 
statements are not disclosed as related party transactions and balances below. These are on 
the basis determined between the parties.

 (b) Other related parties:

  There are transactions and arrangements between the Group and related parties and the 
eff ects of these on the basis determined between the parties are refl ected in these fi nancial 
statements. The current related party balances are unsecured, without fi xed repayment terms 
and interest unless stated otherwise. 

     Signifi cant related party transactions: 

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the fi nancial 
statements, this item includes the following: 

 THE GROUP
        2014  2013

            $’000 $’000

Consultancy fees to directors of subsidiaries   580 484
Purchase of goods and services from a director 
 of the Company     1,426 689
Sale of goods and services to key management personnel   –  1,932
Management fees from related parties   247 256

    Rental income from related parties   450 449

Related parties refer to companies and their subsidiaries with a substantial shareholder in 
common with the Group. 

(c)  Key management compensation:
 THE GROUP

        2014  2013
            $’000 $’000

    Salaries and other employee benefi ts   4,279 4,546
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5  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D)

(c)  Key management compensation: (Cont’d)

The above amounts are included under staff  costs. Included in the above amounts are the 
following items:

 THE GROUP
        2014  2013

            $’000 $’000

Remuneration of directors of the Company   2,045 2,273
Fees to directors of the Company   289 260

    Remuneration of key management personnel  1,945 2,013

Key management personnel are executive directors and those persons having authority 
and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly 
or indirectly. The above amounts for key management compensation are all the executive 
directors and key management personnel.

6  REVENUE
 THE GROUP

        2014  2013
            $’000 $’000

Rendering of services from hotel operations   213,558 227,497
Rental income      15,743 16,275
Sale of residential properties    45,344 19,496

  Others        4,082 3,474
            278,727 266,742

7  INTEREST INCOME
 THE GROUP

        2014  2013
            $’000 $’000

Interest income from bank deposits   1,242 1,287
  Interest income from bonds    170 184
            1,412 1,471

8  DIVIDEND INCOME
 THE GROUP

        2014  2013
            $’000 $’000

  Dividend income on investments in quoted equity securities  210 131

83STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9  OTHER CREDITS AND (OTHER CHARGES)
 THE GROUP

        2014  2013
            $’000 $’000

Losses on disposal of investments held-for-trading  (42) – 
(Losses)/Gains on fair value of investments held-for-trading  (3) 358
Gains on fair value of investment properties (before tax)  409 12,810
(Losses)/Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment  (4) 8 
Foreign exchange (losses)/gains    (1,340) 188
Allowance for impairment on trade receivables   (284) (67)
Inventories written off     (13) (16)
Project costs written off     –  (61)

  Provision for impairment on completed properties for sale  –  (1,741)
            (1,277) 11,479

  
Presented in the income statement as:  
Other Credits      409 13,364

  Other Charges      (1,686) (1,885)
            (1,277) 11,479

10  STAFF COSTS

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Staff  costs including directors’ remuneration   91,310 99,206
  
  Costs of defi ned contribution plans included in staff  costs  5,311 5,833
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11  OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

  Other operating expenses include the following:
 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Audit fees paid to auditors of the Company   173  155 
   Non-audit fees paid to auditors of the Company   –    –   
    Audit fees paid to other auditors    256 253
    Non-audit fees paid to other auditors   46 45
    Commission and reservation expenses   10,215 9,759
    Land lease expenses    4,779 5,255
    Utilities and telecommunications    9,096 9,965
    Repairs and maintenance    6,207 6,584
    Advertising and promotion    7,253 4,973
    Property taxes and rates    5,580 6,050
    Hotel supplies and services    8,673 8,994
    Consultancy, legal and professional fees   3,012 2,770
    Insurance        1,117 1,475

12  FINANCE COSTS
 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Interest expense on bank loans    15,212 18,452
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13  INCOME TAX
 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Current tax expense:  
  Current year       7,818 7,109
  Adjustment for prior years    (53) (15)
            7,765 7,094
  
  Deferred tax expense:  
  Origination and reversal of temporary diff erences   (56) 3,332
  Change in unrecognised temporary diff erences   68 528
  Utilisation of deferred tax benefi ts previously not recognised  (463) (200)
            (451) 3,660
  
  Tax expense       7,314 10,754

The income tax expense varied from the amount of income tax expense determined by applying the 
Singapore income tax rate of 17% to profi t before income tax as a result of the following diff erences:

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Tax rate reconciliation:  
  Profi t before tax     34,442 42,450

  Income tax expense at statutory rate   5,855 7,217
  Non-deductible expenses    6,359 5,292
  Non-assessable income    (12,703) (9,079)
  Change in unrecognised temporary diff erences   68   528 
  Utilisation of deferred tax benefi ts previously not recognised  (463) (200) 
  Eff ect of diff erent tax rates of overseas operations   8,251 7,011
  Over provision for prior years    (53) (15)
  Total income tax expense    7,314 10,754
  

There are no income tax consequences of dividends paid and payable to shareholders of 
the Company.
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13  INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

Movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as follows:

 THE GROUP
            Provisions Total
            $’000 $’000

  Deferred tax assets    
  At beginning of year 1 April 2012    3,211 3,211
  Recognised in income statement    (1,062) (1,062)
  Currency translation    (41) (41)
  At end of year 31 March 2013    2,108 2,108
  Recognised in income statement    490 490
  Currency translation    (214) (214)
  At end of year 31 March 2014    2,384 2,384

           Gains on 
           fair value 
           of investment
           properties Others Total
           $’000 $’000 $’000

  Deferred tax liabilities    
  At beginning of year 1 April 2012   (23,681) (1,423) (25,104)
  Charged to income statement   (3,843) 1,245 (2,598)
  Currency translation   206 (5) 201
  At end of year 31 March 2013   (27,318) (183)  (27,501)
  Charged to income statement   –    (39) (39)
  Currency translation   2,771 18 2,789
  At end of year 31 March 2014   (24,547) (204) (24,751)

  Net deferred tax liabilities     (22,367)

            THE COMPANY
            Fair value 
            changes Total
            $’000 $’000

  Deferred tax liabilities    
  At beginning of year 1 April 2012    (6,837) (6,837)
  Reversed during the year    811 811
  At end of year 31 March 2013    (6,026) (6,026)
  Reversed during the year    810 810
  At end of year 31 March 2014    (5,216) (5,216)

  Net deferred tax liabilities     (5,216)
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13  INCOME TAX (CONT’D)

  The deferred tax balances recognised in the statement of fi nancial position are as follows:

            THE GROUP  THE COMPANY
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Deferred tax liabilities  (24,751) (27,501) (5,216) (6,026)
  Deferred tax assets   2,384 2,108 –    –   
  Net balance     (22,367) (25,393) (5,216) (6,026)

  Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items:

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Deductible temporary diff erences    4,671 4,450
  Tax losses       60,446 58,484
            65,117 62,934

The remaining tax losses and the deductible temporary diff erences do not expire under current tax 
legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not 
probable that future taxable profi ts will be available against which certain subsidiaries of the Group 
can utilise the benefi ts therefrom. 

14  EARNINGS PER SHARE

           THE GROUP
           2014    2013
          Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Profi t attributable to equity holders  27,128 27,128 31,696 31,696
          

          No. of shares (’000)  No. of shares (’000)

  Weighted average number of ordinary 
   shares used to compute earnings 
   per share    863,833 863,833 863,833 863,833
  Earnings per share (cents)  3.14 3.14 3.67 3.67

Basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during each period. The diluted earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares and dilutive ordinary share equivalents outstanding during each period. 
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15  DIVIDENDS ON EQUITY SHARES

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Final tax exempt (one-tier) dividend paid of 
   2 cents (2013: 2 cents) per share in respect 
   of dividends approved for prior year   17,276 17,276
  Special tax exempt (one-tier) dividend paid of 
   1 cent (2013: 2 cents) per share in respect of 
   dividends approved for prior year   8,639 17,277
  Total dividends paid in the year    25,915 34,553

In respect of the current year, the directors propose a fi nal tax exempt (one-tier) dividend of 
2.0 cents per ordinary share and a special tax exempt (one-tier) dividend of 1.0 cent per ordinary 
share totalling 3.0 cents per ordinary share or $25,915,000. The proposed dividend is subject 
to approval by the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting.

16  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
           Leasehold Renovation,  Equipment Capital
         Freehold Freehold land and furniture Motor and work-in-
  THE GROUP    land buildings buildings and fi ttings vehicles computers progress Total
         $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Cost:        
  At beginning of year 
   1 April 2012   53,232 336,324 132,155 70,346 993 101,167 137 694,354
  Currency translation  (200) (3,674) (1,158) (482) (8) (855) (1) (6,378)
  Additions     –    154 3 4,940 92 11,021 (132) 16,078
  Disposals/Written off   –    –    (441) (1,949) (45) (718) –    (3,153)
  At end of year 
   31 March 2013  53,032 332,804 130,559 72,855 1,032 110,615 4 700,901
        
  Accumulated depreciation:        
  At beginning of year 
   1 April 2012   –    64,020 21,934 55,462 846 69,201 –    211,463
  Currency translation  –    (2,019) (170) (323) (6) (498) –    (3,016)
  Depreciation for the year –    3,946 1,744 5,860 44 5,258 –    16,852
  Disposals/Written off   –    –    (441) (1,948) (45) (568) –    (3,002)
  At end of year 
   31 March 2013  –    65,947 23,067 59,051 839 73,393 –    222,297
        
  Net book value:        
  At end of year 
   31 March 2013  53,032 266,857 107,492 13,804 193 37,222  4 478,604
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16  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
           Leasehold Renovation,  Equipment Capital
         Freehold Freehold land and furniture Motor and work-in-
  THE GROUP    land buildings buildings and fi ttings vehicles computers progress Total
         $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Cost:        
  At beginning of year 
   1 April 2013   53,032 332,804 130,559 72,855 1,032 110,615    4 700,901
  Currency translation  (2,809) (23,224) (13,764) (5,322) (91) (10,590) –    (55,800)
  Additions     17,322 196 3,318 3,273 152 14,553 133 38,947
  Disposals/Written off   –    –    –    (5) (84) (683) –    (772)
  Reclassifi cation   6,089 –    (6,089) –    –    –    –    –   
  At end of year 
   31 March 2014  73,634 309,776 114,024 70,801 1,009 113,895 137 683,276
 
  Accumulated depreciation:        
  At beginning of year 
   1 April 2013   –    65,947 23,067 59,051 839 73,393 –    222,297
  Currency translation  –    (4,004) (3,341) (4,262) (75) (6,848) –    (18,530)
  Depreciation for the year –    3,658 1,621 4,280 57 5,197 –    14,813
  Disposals/Written off   –    –    –    (2) (84) (648) –    (734)
  At end of year 
   31 March 2014  –    65,601 21,347 59,067 737 71,094 –    217,846
        
  Net book value:        
  At end of year 
   31 March 2014  73,634 244,175 92,677 11,734 272 42,801 137 465,430

During the year, the Group transferred a property from leasehold land and buildings to freehold 
land and buildings after purchase of freehold interest in this property. The freehold and leasehold 
land and buildings with carrying value totalling approximately $410,486,000 (2013: $427,381,000) 
are charged by way of mortgages and fi xed and fl oating equitable charges for long-term borrowings 
(Note 29).

17  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 

The table below analyses investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation method. 
The diff erent levels have been defi ned as follows:

• Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

• Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data                        
(unobservable inputs).
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17  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

            THE GROUP
           Freehold land  Leasehold  
           and buildings  buildings Total 
  Level 3:       $’000 $’000 $’000

  Net book value:   
  At beginning of year 1 April 2012   198,724 14,557 213,281
  Currency translation   (1,680) –    (1,680)
  Add: Gains on fair value of investment properties  12,810 –    12,810
  At end of year 31 March 2013   209,854 14,557 224,411
  Currency translation   (21,286) –    (21,286)
  Add: Gains on fair value of investment properties  –    409 409
  At end of year 31 March 2014   188,568 14,966 203,534

            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Rental and service income from investment properties  16,061 18,010
  Direct operating expense (including repairs and 
   maintenance, arising from investment properties 
   that generated rental income  during the year)   3,828 4,018

All investment properties are leased out under operating lease arrangements.  

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on internal valuations or independent professional 
valuations (refer to policy in Note 2).

In the current year, the fair values of the freehold and leasehold land and buildings were based 
on valuations performed by Hill PDA Consulting and Suntec Real Estate Consultants Pte Ltd, 
respectively. Both are fi rms of independent professional valuers who are certifi ed real estate 
appraisers. The following valuation methods were used to value investment properties:

•  Applying a suitable price per square metre by analysing comparable sales for similar properties, 
adjusted for various factors including the age, location and condition, to refl ect diff erences 
with the investment properties (direct sales comparison approach).

•  Capitalising rental income using a market capitalisation rate, based on yields achieved 
by comparable properties (capitalisation approach). 

•  Calculating net present value of projected cash fl ows relating to the investment property, 
using an appropriate discount rate (discounted cash fl ow approach).
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17  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The following table presents the information about fair value measurements using signifi cant 
unobservable inputs:

Type Valuation method
Key unobservable 
inputs

Inter-relationship 
between key 
unobservable inputs and 
fair value measurement

Commercial properties Capitalisation 
approach

Discounted cash 
fl ow approach

Direct sales 
comparison

Capitalisation rate: 4% 
to 7.25%

Discount rate: 8.5% to 
8.75%

Price per square 
metre: $17,223 to 
$21,798

The estimated fair value 
varies inversely against 
the capitalisation rate 
and discount rate.

The estimated fair value 
increases in proportion 
with the price per square 
metre.

Valuations refl ect when appropriate, the type of tenants actually in occupation or responsible 
for meeting lease commitments or likely to be in occupation after letting vacant accommodation, 
the allocation of maintenance and insurance responsibilities between the Group and the lessee, 
and the remaining economic life of the property. When rent reviews or lease renewals are pending 
with anticipated reversionary increases, it is assumed that all notices, and when appropriate 
counter-notices, have been served validly and within the appropriate time.

Investment properties at carrying values of $203,534,000 (2013: $224,411,000) are mortgaged 
as securities for the bank facilities (see Note 29).  

18  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 

 THE COMPANY
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Cost of investments    377,584 381,887
  Less: Allowance for impairment loss   (1,071) (7,670)
            376,513 374,217
  Movements in allowance for impairment loss:  
  Balance at beginning of the year    7,670 7,670
  Utilised upon completed liquidation of a subsidiary   (6,599) –   
  Balance at end of the year    1,071 7,670
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18  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

The recoverable amounts of investments in subsidiaries are measured based on fair value less costs 
to sell, by reference to the net assets value of the subsidiaries. The net assets of the subsidiaries 
comprise mainly fi nancial assets and liabilities, investment properties and properties held for sale. 
The Company views that the carrying amounts of the fi nancial assets and fi nancial liabilities 
approximate their fair values due to the short-term maturity of these items, while the investment 
properties and properties held for sale have been adjusted to their fair values and realisable 
values, respectively. 

The Company determined that no additional impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss on 
the investments in subsidiaries is required. Movement during the year was due to utilisation of 
impairment loss previously provided following the completion of liquidation of a subsidiary. 

Investments in subsidiaries include investments of $100,790,000 (2013: $100,790,000) which are 
denominated in Australian dollars.

    Country of
   Principal incorporation  Group’s
 Name of subsidiary activities and operation eff ective interest
     2014   2013
     %  %

 Hotel owning 
 and management    

 Atrington Trust     Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 Dickensian Holdings Ltd Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 Goldenlines  Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100
  Investments Ltd (2)     

 The Grand Hotel (S.A.)  Trustee Australia 100  100
  Pty Ltd (1)     

 The Grand Hotel Hotel owning  Australia 100  100
  Unit Trust (1)     

 HSH (Australia) Trust Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 HSH Contractors Pte Ltd Financier Singapore 100  100

 K.R.M.F.C. Pty Ltd+ Dormant Australia 100  100

 Logan Trust (1) Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 Minteyville Lt Collins  Hotel owning Australia 100  100
  Street Pty Ltd (1) & operations  

 MLCS Trust Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 North Ryde  Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100
  Investments Limited     
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18  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 

    Country of
   Principal incorporation  Group’s
 Name of subsidiary activities and operation eff ective interest
     2014   2013
     %  %

 Hotel owning 
 and management (Cont’d) 

 Ovenard Trust Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 RGA Trust Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 Sir Stamford at Circular  Hotel operator Australia 100  100
  Quay Pty Ltd (1)     

 Sir Stamford Hotels  Hotel operations Singapore 100  100
  & Resorts Pte Ltd     

 SNR Trust (1) Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 Stamford Cairns Trust+ Dormant Australia 100  100

 Stamford Gold Coast Trust Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 Stamford Heritage Pty Ltd (1) Hotel operator Australia 100  100

 Stamford Hotels Dormant  Singapore 100  100
  & Resorts Pte. Ltd.    

 Stamford Hotels  Hotel operator New Zealand 100  100
  (NZ) Limited (2)    

 Stamford Hotels Pty Ltd (1) Hotel operator Australia 100  100

 Stamford Hotels and  Hotel management Australia 100  100
  Resorts Pty Limited (1)    

 Stamford Mayfair Limited+ Dormant British Virgin Islands 100  100

 Stamford Plaza Sydney  Hotel operator Australia 100  100
  Management 
  Pty Limited (1)    

 Stamford Raffl  es Pty Ltd+ Dormant Australia 100  100

 Stamford Sydney  Hotel operator Australia 100  100
  Airport Pty Ltd (1)     

 Terrace Hotel (Operations)  Hotel operator Australia 100  100
  Pty Ltd (1)     

 TIA Trust Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 Property Development      

 Fontelle Trust (1) Investment holding British Virgin Islands 100  100

 SLC Campsie Pty Ltd (1) Investment holding  Australia 100  100
   & property developer   
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18  INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D) 

    Country of
   Principal incorporation  Group’s
 Name of subsidiary activities and operation eff ective interest
     2014   2013
     %  %

 Property Development (Cont’d) 

 Stamford Property  Property management Australia 100  100
  Services Pty. Limited (1)    

 Stamford Raffl  es Trust (1) Investment holding  British Virgin Islands 100  100 
   & property developer      
 
 Property Investment      

 Knoxville Trust Investment holding  British Virgin Islands 100  100
   & property developer   

 HSH Properties Pte Ltd Property investment Singapore 100  100

 Plantique Investment Liquidation completed  Singapore –  100
  Pte Ltd during the year    

 Trading     

 Singapore Wallcoverings General importers,  Singapore 100  100 
  Centre (Private) Limited exporters and dealers 
   in wallcoverings and
   interior decorations

 Varimerx S.E. Asia Pte Ltd General importers,  Singapore 100  100
   exporters and dealers 
   in furnishing products        

 Voyager Travel Pte Ltd Travel agency Singapore 100  100

 Others     

 HSH Tanker Inc. Dormant Panama 100  100

 Stamford Land  Management and Singapore 100  100 
  Management Pte Ltd  consultancy services    

 Stamford Land  Dormant Singapore 100  100
  (International) Pte Ltd       
 
  All subsidiaries are audited by KPMG LLP, Singapore except as indicated.

  (1)  Audited by KPMG, Sydney

  (2)  Audited by KPMG, Auckland

  +  Not required to be audited, as it is dormant
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19  AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

            THE COMPANY
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Advances receivable from subsidiaries  
  Balance at beginning of year    29 30
  Net amounts received during the year   (15) (1)
  Balance at end of year    14 29

The amounts due from subsidiaries are netted off  with amounts due to the same subsidiaries as 
there is a right and intention to settle on a net basis.

All balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, non-trade in nature and repayable on demand.

There is no allowance for doubtful debt arising from the outstanding balance owing by subsidiaries.

20  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The table below analyses fi nancial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. 
The diff erent levels have been defi ned as follows:

• Level 1:   quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

• Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data                        
(unobservable inputs).

           THE GROUP  THE COMPANY
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Level 1:    
  Quoted equity securities  384 347 384 347
  Change in fair value and recognised in
   other comprehensive income  (37) 37 (37) 37
  Fair value at end of year  347 384 347 384

The fair values of investments in equity securities are determined by reference to their quoted closing 
bid price in an active market at the measurement date.
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21  DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES FOR SALE

            Other
           Development related 
  THE GROUP    Land  expenditure costs Total
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Cost:    
  At beginning of year 1 April 2012  –    5,975 –    5,975
  Currency translation  –    (55) –    (55)
  Additions      –    1,561 –    1,561
  At end of year 31 March 2013  –    7,481 –    7,481
  Currency translation  –    (759) –    (759)
  Additions      29,032 6,683 90   35,805
  At end of year 31 March 2014  29,032 13,405 90 42,527

22  COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

             THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Unsold properties at beginning of year   117,081 134,412
  Currency translation    (2,070) (189)
  Transfer to income statement on sale   (39,102) (17,142)
            75,909 117,081
  Less: Write-down to net realisable value   (4,671) (4,450)
  Unsold properties at end of year    71,238 112,631

The net realisable value of unsold completed properties for sale is determined based on expected 
sales price. A write down to net realisable value was provided for the unsold residential properties in 
New Zealand based on an independent professional valuation. The valuation obtained was based 
on the direct sales comparison method.

23  INVENTORIES

             THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Finished goods      564 615
  Consumables      1,155 1,331
            1,719 1,946

The net realisable value of inventories is determined based on the estimated selling price in the 
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and sale, and a reasonable profi t 
margin based on the eff ort required to complete and sell the inventories.
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24  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

          THE GROUP  THE COMPANY
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Trade receivables    
  Third parties     7,355 11,560 –    –   
  Lease receivable   1,635 2,123 –    –   
  Less: Allowance for impairment  (101) (106) –    –   
          8,889 13,577 –    –   
  Other receivables    
  Related parties (Note 5)  183 72 –    –   
  Accrued interest receivable  47 48 –    –   
  Deposits      203 28 –    –   
  Other receivables   3,707 1,750 6 85
  Loans and receivables  13,029 15,475 6 85
    
  Amount denominated in foreign 
   currencies include:      
  Australian dollars   10,399 12,218 –    –   
  New Zealand dollars  1,012 1,512 –    –   

The average credit period generally granted for third party trade receivables is about 30 days (2013: 
30 days). Some customers take a longer period to settle the amounts. The table below illustrates 
the trade receivables aging analysis:

  THE GROUP
 2014 2013 
           Allowance   Allowance
           for  for
          Gross impairment Gross impairment
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Less than 30 days   6,299 –    10,384 –   
  31 – 60 days    811 –    1,109 (39)
  61 – 90 days    43 –    42 (42)
  More than 90 days   202 (101) 25 (25)
          7,355 (101) 11,560 (106)

  Amounts greater than 30 days are considered to be past due. They are not secured.
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24  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT’D)

             THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Movements in above allowance:  
  Balance at beginning of year    106 71
  Charged to income statement included in other charges  172 67
  Currency translation    (11) (1)  
  Bad debts written off     (166) (31)
  Balance at end of year    101 106

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the Group has a large 
number of diversifi ed customers. Except for the impaired receivables, the Group does not consider it 
necessary to record any allowance (including the past due receivables) owing to good credit records 
and reputation of its customers.

The fair values of trade and other receivables are estimated at the present value of future cash 
fl ows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the measurement date. Short-term receivables 
with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount if the eff ect of discounting is 
immaterial. Fair value is determined at initial recognition and, for disclosure purposes, at each annual 
reporting date.

25  OTHER ASSETS

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Prepayments      7,012 2,755

26  INVESTMENTS HELD-FOR-TRADING

The table below analyses fi nancial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. 
The diff erent levels have been defi ned as follows:

• Level 1:   quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2:   inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

• Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs).
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26  INVESTMENTS HELD-FOR-TRADING (CONT’D)

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Level 1:  
  Fair value:  
  Quoted equity securities    3,439 3,442
  
  Level 2:  
  Debt securities      –    2,637
  Fair value at end of year    3,439 6,079

Investments held-for-trading represent short-term investments which provide an opportunity for 
return through dividend income, interest income and trading gains. All the investments are stated 
at fair values.

The fair values of investments in quoted equity securities are determined by reference to their quoted 
closing bid price in an active market at the measurement date.

The fair value of debt securities was determined by reference to their quoted closing bid price in a 
non-active market at the measurement date.

27  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

          THE GROUP  THE COMPANY
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Cash and bank balances  11,778 14,564 457 476
  Fixed deposits    76,388 64,899 6 6
  Cash and cash equivalents  88,166 79,463 463 482
  Deposits pledged   (3,424) (4,085) –    –   
  Cash and cash equivalents in the 
   statement of cash fl ows  84,742 75,378 463 482

  Interest earning balances    83,817 74,905 196 146
    
  Amounts denominated in foreign 
   currencies include:    
  Australian dollars   13,433 45,349 114 63
  New Zealand dollars  3,895 16,767 –    –   
  United States dollars  67 94 64 64
  Japanese yen    17 18 17 18
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27  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONT’D)

Deposits pledged are bank balances of certain subsidiaries pledged in relation to interest payment 
and bank balance of a subsidiary pledged in relation to bankers’ guarantee issued to the subsidiary’s 
contractors.

The rate of interest for the cash on the interest-earning balances range between 0.37% and 
3.00% (2013: 0.40% and 3.37%) per annum.

  Fixed deposits represent short-term deposits with maturity dates of less than 3 months.

28  SHARE CAPITAL

 THE GROUP & THE COMPANY
 Number of ordinary shares $’000
          2014 2013 2014 2013

  Issued and fully paid:    

  At beginning of the year  863,833,482 863,833,482 144,556 144,556
  At end of the year   863,833,482 863,833,482 144,556 144,556

  The ordinary shares of no par value carry no right to fi xed income and are fully paid-up.  

  Capital management

  Capital consists of ordinary shares.

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to have a strong capital base and 
a good rating to maintain investor, creditor and market confi dence and to sustain future development 
of the business.

The management does not set a target level of gearing but uses capital opportunistically to support 
its business and to add value for shareholders. The key discipline adopted is to widen the margin 
between the return on capital employed and the cost of that capital.

The Group manages its capital to ensure entities in the Group will be able to continue as going 
concerns while maximising the return to shareholders through optimisation of the debt and equity 
balance. The Group actively reviews its capital structure and considers the cost of capital and the 
risks associated with each class of capital. The Group balances its overall capital structure through 
the payment of dividends, share buy-back, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the 
redemption of existing debt. 

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the fi nancial year. 

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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29  LONG-TERM BANK BORROWINGS

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Bank loans       343,549 344,265
  Less: Current portion     (211,136) (314,341)
  Non-current portion     132,413 29,924

  Non-current portion is payable as follows:  
  Between 1 and 2 years    5,762 –   
  Between 2 and 5 years    126,651 29,924 
            132,413 29,924

  The term loans as at 31 March 2014 comprise:

(a)  $110,580,000 (A$95,000,000) [2013: $123,063,000 (A$95,000,000)] and $26,875,000 
(NZ$24,620,000) [2013: $25,606,000 (NZ$24,620,000)] term loans secured by legal mortgages 
on certain properties of the subsidiaries. These loans are repayable in fi nancial year 2015 and are 
expected to be refi nanced upon maturity. Interest is pegged to market rates ranging from 4.35% to 
4.85% (2013: 4.30% to 6.67%) per annum. Interest rate is repriceable at intervals of 1 to 3 months.

(b)  $99,763,000 (A$85,706,000) [2013: $87,948,000 (A$67,892,000)] term loan secured by legal 
mortgages on certain properties of the subsidiaries. During the year, an additional loan of $20,735,000 
(A$17,814,000) was drawn down to purchase freehold interest of an existing mortgaged property. 
The loan is repayable in fi nancial year 2017. Interest is pegged to market rates ranging from 
4.52% to 4.94% (2013: 4.94% to 6.33%) per annum. Interest rate is repriceable at intervals of 1 to 
3 months. 

(c)  $69,840,000 (A$60,000,000) [2013: $77,724,000 (A$60,000,000)] term loan secured by legal 
mortgages on certain properties of the subsidiaries. Interest is pegged to market rates ranging from 
4.02% to 4.47% (2013: 4.45% to 5.82%) per annum. Interest rate is repriceable at intervals of 1 to 
3 months. 

(d)  $36,491,000 (A$31,350,000) [2013: $29,924,000 (A$23,100,000)] term loan secured by legal 
mortgages on certain properties of the subsidiaries. During the year, $11,524,000 (A$9,900,000) 
was drawn down. $1,921,000 (A$1,650,000) [2013: $6,310,000 (A$4,950,000)] was repaid during 
the year. Interest is pegged to market rates ranging from 4.56% to 5.02% (2013: 5.02% to 6.37%) 
per annum. Interest rate is repriceable at intervals of 1 to 3 months. 

Subsequent to year end, $69,840,000 (A$60,000,000) has been refi nanced for 1 year. Management 
remains confi dent of refi nancing the remaining borrowings as and when they fall due.
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30  AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

 THE COMPANY
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Amounts due to subsidiaries     177,710 156,568
  
  Loans payable to subsidiaries  
  Balance at beginning of year     156,568 128,500
  Net amounts advanced during the year   22,265 34,150
  Fair value adjustment for interest-free loan   (9,292) (13,211)
  Interest expense     8,169 7,129
  Balance at end of year     177,710 156,568
  
  Current portion      6,163 6,859
  Non-current portion    171,547 149,709
  Total payables – Non-trade    177,710 156,568

The amounts due to subsidiaries are netted off  with amounts due from the same subsidiaries as 
there is a right and intention to settle on a net basis.

All balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, non-trade in nature and repayable on demand.

For non-current balances if signifi cant, an interest is imputed based on the prevailing market 
interest rate for similar debt less the interest rate if any provided in the agreement for the balance. 
The carrying amount of the non-current portion of the amounts due to subsidiaries approximates its 
fair value as there has been no signifi cant diff erence between market interest rates and the imputed 
interest rates.

31  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
          THE GROUP  THE COMPANY
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Trade payables 
  Third parties     6,178 4,869 –    –   

  Other payables    
  Related parties (Note 5)  337 97 –    –   
  Accrued loan interest payable  955 1,125 –    –   
  Accrued liabilities   12,116 14,493 350 345
  Other payables    14,020 13,189 2,185 2,133
  Financial guarantees in 
   favour of subsidiaries  –    –    2,398 1,113
  Derivative liabilities   601 –    –    –   
          34,207 33,773 4,933 3,591
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31  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONT’D)

          THE GROUP  THE COMPANY
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Amount denominated in 
   foreign currencies include:   
  Australian dollars   15,478 14,104 1,899  2,113 
  New Zealand dollars  1,630 1,316 –    –   
    
  The other payables are with short-term duration.

The table below analyses fi nancial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. 
The diff erent levels have been defi ned as follows:

• Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2:   inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

• Level 3:  inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data 
(unobservable inputs).

          THE GROUP  THE COMPANY
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Level 2:    
  Derivative liabilities   601 –    –    –   
    
  Level 3:    
  Financial guarantees in favour 
   of subsidiaries   –    –    3,701 1,923
          601 –    3,701 1,923

Derivative fi nancial instruments comprise forward exchange contracts.

The fair values of derivative fi nancial instruments are determined by reference to broker quotes at 
the measurement date.

The fair value of fi nancial guarantees in favour of subsidiaries is calculated based on the diff erence 
between the actual interest rates obtained by subsidiaries for loans guaranteed by the Company and 
market interest rates for non-guaranteed loans obtained from banker quotes as at 31 March 2014. 
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32  OPERATING SEGMENTS

For management purposes, the Group is organised into strategic business units based on their 
products, services and geography. The Group has fi ve reportable segments as follows:

Hotel owning and management segment: The ownership and management of hotels.

Property development segment: The development, construction and trading in properties.

Property investment segment: The holding of properties for rental income and/or capital appreciation.

Trading segment: Interior decoration companies and a travel agency.

Others: Dividend income and management fees charged to related parties and unallocated 
expenses that are not directly attributable to the segment or cannot be allocated to the segment on 
a reasonable basis.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) monitors the results of each of the above operating 
segments for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance 
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are measured on the basis that the entity actually used to price the transfers. 
Internal transfer pricing policies of the Group are as far as practicable based on market prices.

The Group’s activities are based in Singapore, Australia and New Zealand. 

         Hotel Owning Property Property 
         & Management Development Investment Trading Others Total 
         $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  2014      
  REVENUE      
  External sales   213,558 47,877 13,369 3,827 96 278,727
  Inter-segment sales  –    –    451 28 4,157 4,636
      
  RESULTS      
  Depreciation    14,635 36 87 23 32 14,813
  Profi t/(Loss) 
   from operations  40,669 575 12,069 366 (4,370) 49,309
  Interest income        1,412
  Dividend income       210
  Finance costs        (15,212)
  Other charges (Net of 
   other credits)        (1,277)
  Profi t before tax        34,442
  Income tax expense       (7,314)
  Profi t after tax        27,128
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32  OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)
         Hotel Owning Property Property 
         & Management Development Investment Trading Others Total 
         $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  2014    
  RESULTS  
  Other material non-cash items:     
  Gains on fair value of 
   investment properties      409
      
  ASSETS      
  Reportable 
   segment assets  495,464 115,090 213,772 3,425 71,074 898,825
  Capital expenditure  38,609 251 –   20 67 38,947

  LIABILITIES      
  Reportable segment 
      liabilities    294,300 30,857 73,328 861 7,840 407,186

  2013
  REVENUE
  External sales    227,497 21,978 13,893 3,266 108 266,742
  Inter-segment sales  –    –    446 13 207 666
      
  RESULTS      
  Depreciation    16,745 47 –    26 34 16,852
  Profi t/(Loss)    
     from operations  38,530 680 12,531 386 (4,306) 47,821
  Interest income        1,471
  Dividend income       131
  Finance costs        (18,452)
  Other credits (Net of 
   other charges)       11,479
  Profi t before tax        42,450
  Income tax expense       (10,754)
  Profi t after tax        31,696
      
  Other material non-cash items:     
  Gains on fair value of
     investments held-for-trading      358
  Gains on fair value of
     investment properties      12,810
      

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
ANNUAL REPORT 2013/2014106



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32  OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)
         Hotel Owning Property Property 
         & Management Development Investment Trading Others Total 
         $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  2013    
  ASSETS      
  Reportable segment assets 540,639 117,525 247,756 3,293 22,124 931,337
  Capital expenditure  16,052 4 –   11 11 16,078
      
  LIABILITIES      
  Reportable segment 
     liabilities    265,643 28,493 108,666 1,084 6,715 410,601

The following table analyses assets and liabilities not allocated to business segments because 
they are not directly attributable to the segment or cannot be allocated to the segment on a 
reasonable basis:

             THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  ASSETS  
  Property, Plant and Equipment    99 64
  Available-for-Sale Investments    347 384
  Investments Held-for-trading    3,439 6,079
  Current Receivables    152 119
  Cash and Cash Equivalents    67,037 15,478
            71,074 22,124
  LIABILITIES  
  Current Payables     4,141 3,643
  Tax Liabilities: Current    3,699 3,072
            7,840 6,715

  Net balance at end of the year     63,234 15,409
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32  OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s sales by geographical market, irrespective 
of the origin of the goods/services:

            Revenue by 
            geographical market
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Australia        222,077 234,823
  New Zealand      52,345 28,158
  Singapore       4,305 3,761
            278,727 266,742

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets and capital expenditure 
analysed by the geographical areas in which the assets are located:

          Carrying amount  Capital
          of segment assets expenditure
          2014 2013 2014 2013
          $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

  Australia      682,859 737,060 38,077 15,424
  New Zealand    121,645 149,342 782 632
  Singapore     94,321 44,935 88 22
  Total       898,825 931,337 38,947 16,078
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33  OPERATING LEASES

The Group leases out its investment property under operating leases (see Note 17). The leases 
run for a period of 10 years, with an option to renew the lease after expiration. Lease payments 
are reviewed every year to refl ect market rentals and changes in the local price index. None 
of the leases contain contingent rent arrangements. The future minimum lease payments 
receivable under non-cancellable leases are as follows: 

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Within one year      12,619 13,393
  Between one and fi ve years    73,089 77,508
  More than fi ve years    670 18,621

34  CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

 THE GROUP
            2014 2013
            $’000 $’000

  Estimated amounts committed 
   for plant and equipment but not 
   provided for in the fi nancial statements   931 7,045
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SHAREHOLDING STATISTICS

as at 18 June 2014

Number of Shares in Issue : 863,833,482
Number of Shareholders : 8,551
Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares
Treasury Shares : Nil
Voting Rights : One vote per share

BREAKDOWN OF SHAREHOLDINGS BY RANGE  

    % of
    Issued
 No. of  % of No. of  Share
Size of Shareholdings Shareholders  Shareholders  Shares  Capital
1  -  999 74 0.87 31,514 0.00 
1,000  -  10,000 4,411 51.58 27,975,253 3.24
10,001  -  1,000,000 4,017 46.98 232,751,493 26.95 
1,000,001  AND  ABOVE 49 0.57 603,075,222 69.81
TOTAL 8,551  100.00  863,833,482  100.00 

TWENTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS

            No. of % of Issued
No. Name of Shareholder    Shares  Share Capital
   
1  OW CHIO KIAT      300,216,000 34.75
2  DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD    28,498,000 3.30
3  TAN GIM TEE HOLDINGS PTE LTD   26,400,000 3.06
4  CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD   24,218,000 2.80
5  UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD   23,890,000 2.76
6  MORPH INVESTMENTS LTD    16,785,900 1.94
7  KIERSTEN OW YILING (OU YILING)   14,341,000 1.66
8  CHU SIEW HOONG CHRISTOPHER   13,560,000 1.57
9  HAI SUN HUP GROUP PTE LTD    12,400,000 1.44
10  HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD   10,575,000 1.22
11  OCBC NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD   10,223,000 1.18
12  OW YEW HENG (OU YAOXING)    10,000,000 1.16
13  MARITIME PROPERTIES PTE LTD    9,776,000 1.13
14  PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD    7,688,000 0.89
15  HONG LEONG FINANCE NOMINEES PTE LTD   7,265,000 0.84
16  TAN HUA TOCK     7,238,000 0.84
17  HT OFFSHORE PTE. LTD.    6,500,000 0.75
18  MELLFORD PTE LTD    6,350,000 0.74
19  KAMBAU PTE LTD     4,716,000 0.55
20  GAN TENG SIEW REALTY SDN BHD   4,624,000 0.54

  TOTAL        545,263,900 63.12
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

 Direct Interest Deemed Interest Total

  % of   % of  % of
   Issued   Issued    Issued
 No. of Share No. of Share  No. of  Share
 Shares Capital  Shares  Capital  Shares Capital
Ow Chio Kiat 300,216,000 34.75 22,342,000*  2.59 322,558,000 37.34

*  Ow Chio Kiat is deemed to have an interest in the shares owned by (a) his spouse, Madam Lim Siew Feng 
(166,000 shares); (b) Hai Sun Hup Group Pte Ltd (12,400,000 shares); and (c) Maritime Properties Pte Ltd 
(9,776,000 shares). 

PUBLIC FLOAT 

Rule 723 of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited requires that at least 
10% of the total number of issued shares (excluding preference shares and convertible equity securities) of 
a listed company in a class that is listed is at all times held by the public. Based on information available to 
the Company as at 18 June 2014, approximately 56.05 % of the issued ordinary shares of the Company 
was held by the public and therefore, Rule 723 of the Listing Manual has been complied with.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND BOOKS CLOSURE

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
Company Registration No. 197701615H (Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 36th Annual General Meeting of Stamford Land Corporation Ltd 
(the “Company”) will be held at Amara Singapore, Ballroom 2, Level 3, 165 Tanjong Pagar Road, Singapore 
088539 on Tuesday, 29 July 2014 at 2:30 p.m. to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive and adopt the Audited Financial Statements for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014 and 
the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon. 

(Resolution 1)

2. To declare a fi nal dividend (one-tier tax exempt) of 2.0 cents per ordinary share and a special dividend 
(one-tier tax exempt) of 1.0 cent per ordinary share for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014.

 (Resolution 2)

3. To approve the payment of Directors’ Fees of $270,000 for the fi nancial year ended 31 March 2014.
(Resolution 3)

4. To re-elect Ow Cheo Guan, who is retiring in accordance with Article 91 of the Articles of Association of 
the Company, as a Director.

 Note: Ow Cheo Guan will, upon his re-election as Director, remain as member of the 
Executive Committee. 

(Resolution 4)

5. To re-elect Dr Tan Chin Nam, who is retiring in accordance with Article 91 of the Articles of Association 
of the Company, as a Director.

 Note: Dr Tan Chin Nam will, upon his re-election as Director, remain as Chairman of the Remuneration 
Committee, and member of the Audit and Risk Management Committee. He is considered independent 
for the purposes of Rule 704(8) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading 
Limited (“SGX-ST”).

(Resolution 5)

6. To re-elect Douglas Owen Chester, who is retiring in accordance with Article 97 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company, as a Director.

 Note: Douglas Owen Chester will, upon his re-election as Director, remain as member of the Audit and 
Risk Management Committee. He is considered independent for the purposes of Rule 704(8) of the 
Listing Manual of the SGX-ST.

 (Resolution 6)

7. To re-appoint KPMG LLP as Auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fi x 
their remuneration.

(Resolution 7)
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING AND BOOKS CLOSURE

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
Company Registration No. 197701615H (Incorporated in the Republic of Singapore)

SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fi t, to pass, with or without modifi cations, the following resolution as 
ordinary resolution:

8. That authority be and is hereby given to the Directors to:

 (a) (i)  issue new shares in the capital of the Company (“shares”) whether by way of rights, bonus or
   otherwise; and/or 

(ii)  make or grant off ers, agreements or options (collectively, “Instruments”) that might or would 
require shares to be issued, including but not limited to the creation and issue of (as well as 
adjustments to) warrants, debentures or other instruments convertible into shares, at any time 
and upon such terms and conditions and for such purposes and to such persons as the Directors 
may in their absolute discretion deem fi t; and

(b) (notwithstanding the authority conferred by this Resolution may have ceased to be in force) issue 
shares in pursuance of any Instruments made or granted by the Directors while this Resolution was 
in force,

  provided that:

(i)  the aggregate number of shares to be issued pursuant to this Resolution (including shares to 
be issued in pursuance of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution), does not 
exceed 50% of the issued shares in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance 
with sub-paragraph (ii) below), of which the aggregate number of shares to be issued other than 
on a pro rata basis to shareholders of the Company (including shares to be issued in pursuance 
of Instruments made or granted pursuant to this Resolution) does not exceed 20% of the issued 
shares in the capital of the Company (as calculated in accordance with sub-paragraph (ii) below);

(ii)  (subject to such manner of calculation as may be prescribed by the SGX-ST) for the purpose of 
determining the aggregate number of shares that may be issued under sub-paragraph (i) above, 
the percentage of issued shares shall be based on the number of issued shares in the capital 
of the Company at the time this Resolution is passed, and adjusting for: (1) new shares arising 
from the conversion or exercise of any convertible securities or share options or vesting of share 
awards which are outstanding or subsisting at the time this Resolution is passed; and (2) any 
subsequent bonus issue, consolidation or subdivision of shares;

(iii)  in exercising the authority conferred by this Resolution, the Company shall comply with 
the provisions of the Listing Manual of the SGX-ST for the time being in force (unless such 
compliance has been waived by the SGX-ST) and the Articles of Association for the time being 
of the Company; and
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(iv) (unless revoked or varied by the Company in General Meeting) the authority conferred by this 
Resolution shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company or the date by which the next Annual General Meeting of the Company is required by 
law to be held, whichever is the earlier.

Note: This Resolution, if passed, authorises the Directors to issue shares in the capital of the Company 
and to make or grant instruments (such as warrants or debentures) convertible into shares, and to issue 
shares in pursuance of such instruments, up to an amount not exceeding in total 50% of the issued 
shares in the capital of the Company, with a sub-limit of 20% for issues other than on a pro rata basis 
to shareholders. 

(Resolution 8)

OTHER BUSINESS

To transact any other business that may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting of the Company.

NOTICE IS ALSO HEREBY GIVEN that the Share Transfer Books, Register of Members of the Company 
will be closed on 6 August 2014 for the preparation of dividend warrants. Duly completed registrable 
transfers received by the Company’s Registrars, M & C Services Private Limited of 112 Robinson Road, 
#05-01, Singapore 068902, up to the close of business at 5:00 p.m. on 5 August 2014 will be registered 
to determine the shareholders’ entitlement to the proposed dividends. In respect of shares in securities 
accounts with The Central Depository (Pte) Limited (“CDP”), the said dividends will be paid by the Company 
to CDP which will in turn distribute the dividend entitlements to such holders of shares in accordance with 
its practice.

If approved, the proposed dividends will be paid on 18 August 2014.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

TEO LAY ENG
COMPANY SECRETARY

Singapore
14 July 2014

Notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint not more 
than two proxies to attend and vote in his stead. Where a member appoints more than one proxy, he 
shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. A proxy need not be a 
member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered offi  ce of the Company at 
200 Cantonment Road, #09-01 Southpoint, Singapore 089763 not less than 48 hours before the time 
appointed for holding the meeting.
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PROXY FORM

STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD
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IMPORTANT: FOR CPF INVESTORS ONLY
1. This Annual Report is forwarded to them at the request 

of their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent solely 
FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and shall 
be ineff ective for all intents and purposes if used or purported 
to be used by them.

3. CPF Investors who wish to attend the meeting as Observers 
have to submit their requests through their respective Agent 
Banks so that their Agent Banks may register with the 
Company’s Registrar (please see Note No. 7 on the reverse).

I/We ___________________________________________________________________________________________
of _____________________________________________________________________________________________
being a member/members of the abovementioned Company, hereby appoint 

Name Address NRIC/
Passport Number

Proportion of 
Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

and/or (please delete as appropriate)

Name Address NRIC/
Passport Number

Proportion of 
Shareholdings

No. of Shares %

as my/our proxy/proxies, to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf and, if necessary to demand a poll, at the 
36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at Amara Singapore, Ballroom 2, Level 3, 165 Tanjong 
Pagar Road, Singapore 088539 on Tuesday, 29 July 2014 at 2:30 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof. 
I/We direct my/our proxy/proxies to vote for or against the Resolutions to be proposed at the Annual General 
Meeting as indicated below. In the absence of specifi c directions, the proxy/proxies will vote or abstain 
from voting at his/their discretion, as he/they will on any other matter arising at the Annual General Meeting. 
The authority includes the right to demand or to join in demanding a poll and to vote on a poll.

Resolution No. Ordinary Resolutions For* Against*

1. Adoption of Directors’ Report and Audited Financial Statements

2. Declaration of Dividends

3. Approval of Directors’ Fees of $270,000

4. Re-election of Ow Cheo Guan as Director

5. Re-election of Dr Tan Chin Nam as Director

6. Re-election of Douglas Owen Chester as Director

7. Re-appointment of KPMG LLP as Auditors

8. Authority to issue shares

* Please indicate your vote “For” or “Against” with a tick “√ ” in the box provided.

Dated this ___________ day of ____________________ 2014

______________________________________
Signature(s) or Common Seal of Member(s)
Important: Please read the notes on the overleaf.

Total Number 
of Shares held



The Company Secretary
STAMFORD LAND CORPORATION LTD

200 Cantonment Road
#09-01Southpoint
Singapore 089763

Affi  x
Postage 
Stamp

NOTES

1. Please insert the total number of shares held by you. If you have 
shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as 
defi ned in Section 130A of the Companies Act, Chapter 50), you 
should insert that number of shares. If you have shares registered 
in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert that 
number of shares. If you have shares entered against your name in 
the Depository Register and shares registered in your name in the 
Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate number of 
shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and 
registered in your name in the Register of Members. If no number 
is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be 
deemed to relate to all the shares held by you.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at a 
meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint one or two proxies 
to attend and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member 
of the Company.

3. Where a member appoints two proxies, the appointments shall 
be invalid unless he specifi es the proportion of his shareholding 
(expressed as a percentage of the whole) to be represented by 
each proxy.

4. To be eff ective, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies 
must be completed and deposited at the registered offi  ce of the 
Company at 200 Cantonment Road, #09-01 Southpoint, Singapore 
089763 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for 
the meeting.

5. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be executed 
under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorised 
in writing. Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies 
is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under 
its common seal or under the hand of an offi  cer or attorney 
duly authorised.

6. A corporation which is a member may authorise by resolution of its 
directors or other governing body such person as it thinks fi t to act 
as its representative at the meeting, in accordance with Section 
179 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50.

7. Agent Banks acting on the request of the CPF Investors who wish 
to attend the meeting as Observers are requested to submit in 
writing, a list with details of the investors’ names, NRIC/passport 
numbers, addresses and number of shares held. The list, signed 
by an authorised signatory of the Agent Bank, should reach the 
Company’s Registrar at least 48 hours before the time fi xed for 
holding the meeting.

GENERAL

The Company shall be entitled to reject the instrument appointing a 
proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or illegible 
or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable 
from the instructions of the appointor specifi ed in the instrument 
appointing a proxy or proxies. In addition, in the case of shares entered 
in the Depository Register, the Company may reject any instrument 
appointing a proxy or proxies lodged, if the member, being the 
appointor, is not shown to have shares entered against his name in 
the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time appointed for 
holding the meeting, as certifi ed by The Central Depository (Pte) Limited 
to the Company.

2nd fold here

1st fold here
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